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VISION STATEMENT
We shall build upon our recognition as a socially and environmentally 

responsible organization known for its principled and honest 
business practices. We shall remain committed to exceeding the 

highest expectations of our stakeholders by maintaining the highest 
quality standards and achieving sustained growth in our capacity.

MISSION STATEMENT
We are committed to the higher expectations of our customers. We strive for 

the production of best quality yarns for high value products.
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW
Assalam-o-Alaikum,
I feel pleasure in presenting the financial results in the annual report along with the Auditor’s report for the year ended 
June 30, 2018.

By the grace of Allah, I am pleased to report that our company has achieved a pre-tax profit of Rs.297.910 Million (2016-2017 
Rs.95.520 Million) which is 212% higher than same period last year.  Overall sales volume is also up 12.76% year on year.

Textile Industry
The primary reason for the profit are due to inventory gains owing to efficient buying of raw material and rupee devaluation 
during the year. However, I strongly feel that the fundamental problems and issues confronting the Textile Industry in general, 
especially the exporting Industries have not been corrected.  These include high cost of doing business in Pakistan, especially 
cost of energy, withholding taxes which totals 64 in number and number of levies, as well as SRB enforced by the Provisional 
Government like Sales Tax on Services, etc.  In addition, our labor cost is the highest in the region.  Further, another serious 
reason that continues to chain our ability to fight this competitive textile world is that huge amounts of refunds are stuck up with 
the Government and so far we see no sight of the refunds.  These include, Sales Tax refunds, Income Tax refunds, DDTR 
claims, DLTL claims and Custom Rebates, which are all held back.  All these issues and other inefficiencies of the Government 
Sector plus so many other concerns have not been corrected.  We hope the Government who have recently taken over will 
understand and realize this very difficult situation for the exporting industry and that their focus will change from Import and 
Consumption led growth to Export and Productivity.

I would like to further add that there are serious economic global uncertainties as well, as there seems to be some trade wars 
going on between the major blocks and we really do not know how it will ultimately affect the flow of International Trade.  The 
recent development which came as a surprise to everyone i.e. Brexit, America’s protective policies and getting out of their 
previously signed Trade Agreement is all very disturbing.  Another very interesting phenomena, as I recall, is that the world was 
considered to be a global village and every country was pursuing the policy of Free Trade and flow of Goods between the 
countries, but now on the contrary lot of countries are looking inward and being protective and putting restrictions on free flow 
of goods through Tariff barriers.  

It is a berserk Policy of the Government to put duties and taxes on import of Cotton when the Pakistan Textile Industry is confronting 
severe Cotton shortage for the last couple of years.  I agree that there has to be a system of Minimum Support Price (MSP) for the farmers 
but that is the responsibility of the Government but unfortunately instead of resorting to MSP the Government increases the domestic 
Cotton prices, through practically banning Cotton import through fiscal measures. We have faced cotton crop failure for the last 3 
consecutive years and 

Industry had to import approximately 3.5 Million bales and this year again there is a Cotton Crop failure in the country because of water 
shortage and other impediments and yet the Government has imposed 3% Duty, 2% Additional Custom, 5% sales tax and 1% Income 
Tax on import of Cotton.

Further, there has been no serious and due attention paid for the improvement of Cotton crop in the country.  From seed development to 
monitoring of adulteration in pesticides to fertilizers and to availability of modern technology, no progress has been made in these areas 
and I feel we are even far behind the African countries.   Moreover, the trading of Cotton itself remains most primitive.  Our cotton segment, 
from picking to transportation to ginning to wrapping, everything is so obsolete and the whole system is so untrustworthy that buying 
cotton locally has become very treacherous and undependable.

Cost of Energy

Raw Material

Everyone acknowledges that our Energy cost is the highest in the region, especially if we compare it to the competing countries in Textile,
where it is available around 6 cents. Our Energy cost remains exorbitantly high particularly in Punjab. Recently another news items
that hasfrighten us is that the Government is contemplating a very steep rise in the Gas and Electricity cost, which is alarming.

Interest Rates.
The Interest Rates have risen by 200 basis points and there is every likelihood that it will be further increased, so this is another very 
serious development which can add to the burden of the Textile Industry.

Inflationary Pressures.
The inflationary pressure which was stable during the recent years now seems to be getting out of control.  So this is another grave 
concern which will make all our inputs expensive other than power and interest as already mentioned, which will yet again put burden on 
our ability to export.

Tax burden
Pakistan has one of the most elaborate Withholding Tax regime in the world.  The Revenues are collected at source either in the form of 
Advance Taxes against any Income Tax liability or as fixed taxes.  In particular, many of the fixed taxes have acquired the character of 
indirect taxes and in some cases are clearly regressive in incidence. Today, almost three-fourths of the total revenues from direct taxes 
come from the withholding tax regime. The Tax regime has been extended to sales transactions, utility bills, transports, imports, exports, 
provision of services like contracts, etc.   There are currently 64 sections / sub sections in Income Tax relating to levy of Withholding 
taxes.  The Government usually collects more than the actual liability due from the Industries which results in accumulation of huge 
Refund amounts. Your company also has long pending accumulated Refunds of Income Tax, Sales Tax and Rebate amount of 
Rs.358.737 Million. This is a very critical area which the Government should deliberate, as it gravely affects the liquidity of the Company.  
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There is a need to focus more on a return and documentation based Income Tax System, thereby, reducing reliance on 
Withholding taxes, many of which are indirect and regressive in nature.  We should explore the potential for broad-basing the 
sales tax and bring it closer to being a value added tax.  The Government should work on reforms to minimize multiplicity of 
taxation, escalation in tax rates and focus on gradual rationalization of rates with broad-basing of revenue sources. It should 
formulate a tax policy that is more evidence-based and consistent.

Cost of Labor
One of the challenging aspect of cost of product is the excessive labor cost which is relatively higher as compared to the regional 
market players. Pakistan is considered to be one of the expensive country in terms of labor cost in past decade which is around 
USD.150/- as minimum wage / month.
Human Resource Development
Alhamdulillah, I am proud to state that we honor and fulfill all our responsibilities towards our employees, especially the labor 
class and comply with 100% of our liabilities towards our workers. Our Human Capital Function’s primary responsibility is to take 
care of our human resource by investing in them which results in contribution in the revenue stream and profitability. Having 
said that, we provide a highly congenial and professional working environment to our employees to ensure provision of all 
necessary resources for employee’s efficient working for productivity. We respect individuals and care for their professional and 
personal development by reciprocating their dedication and efforts through employee incentives schemes. We also strongly 
advocate career advancement, transparent performance evaluations and market competitive remunerations. Our performance 
management system has a proper feedback mechanism and development aspect which an employee need to succeed in their 
roles. To motivate, retain and develop people, we have various learning and development initiates and employee engagement 
activities. Our HR systems are technology driven that helps us to work in efficient and effective way.

Information Technology
The Management of TATA Pakistan has strong believe in a structured organization fully automated through enterprise business 
solutions. Consequently, as a result of continuous strategic planning and significant investment over automation, TATA Pakistan 
has now been adequately equipped with standard Information Technology and continuously striving for optimum excel in IT.  
TATA Pakistan has formed a well-structured congenial Corporate IT Department comprising of innovative and seasoned 
professionals, qualified & certified in relevant areas of expertise. The IT Department has essential domination which made the 
effective recognition of IT Faculty in Corporate, simultaneously playing a role of strategic partner and custodian of corporate 
electronic information. The IT facilitates through information flows between all business functions, and ensure timely availability 
of secured / integrated information to its stakeholders all over, which is key factor of right decision making in the light of data 
provided through ERP.
A well-designed, controlled, reliable and centralized network infrastructure is deployed to guarantee secure manipulation of 
information / communication throughout the corporate.

Going Forward
There are six major segments in Textile Industry in Pakistan, namely, Denim, Towel, Home Textile, Knitted Garments, Yarn and 
Grey Fabric.  To a great extent, export of Yarn and Grey Fabric depends on the Chinese Market but as mentioned earlier, 
because of the uncertainty due to the trade war between China and USA, our exports have severely declined and this is leading 
to over capacity of stock which is very detrimental to business and we fear that lot of Mills will shut down.  We hope the new 
Government will review this critical situation being confronted by the textile sector, during the beginning of the season and work 
on providing a major share to Textile Industry in the trade agreement with China.

We on our part are endeavoring to become the most efficient and cost effective Mill and making every efforts to ensure that our 
Textile Company remains one of the top Textile Mill in Pakistan.  Hence, the Management is taking further initiatives to improve 
the Mills infrastructure to achieve optimum manufacturing cost of the product by addition of latest state-of art machines, with 
automation resulting in improved product quality, aiming towards product diversification, we plan to add Twisting and doubling 
machines to produces plied yarns.

Acknowledgment
We sincerely acknowledge and appreciate the untiring endeavors of our various teams who are constantly engaged in upholding 
their commitment to make this organization surpass all the benchmarks of quality and productivity set by the giants of the 
Industry.  As a team we stand highly grateful towards our vendors, bankers and business associates for standing by us during 
the crests and toughs of the business and socioeconomic conditions all around.  Above all, we would like to extend highest order 
gratitude towards our customers who have continued to value and rely their credence in our product line. 

Karachi.
Anwar Ahmed TataDated: September 24, 2018

Chairman
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
The Directors have pleasure in presenting this report, together with the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the year ended
June 30, 2018.

Composition of Board 
The composition of the Board is in compliance with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance regulations, 2017 applicable 
on listed entities which is given below:

Total number of Directors
a. Male 7
b. Female 0

Composition: 
i. Independent Directors 1
ii. Executive Directors 2
iii. Non-Executive Director 4

The names of the directors as at June 30, 2018 are as follows 
1) Mr. Anwar Ahmed Tata - Chairman
2) Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata - Director
3) Mr. Adeel Shahid Tata - Director / Chief Executive Officer 
4) Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata - Director
5) Mr. Aijaz Ahmed Tariq - Director
6) Mr. Muhammad Naseem - Director
7) Sheikh Kausar Ejaz - Director

Committees of the Board
The Board has formed two sub committees namely Audit Committee and Human Resource & Remuneration Committee. The composition 
of both these committees is disclosed as follows:

• Audit Committee

Mr. Muhammad Naseem - Chairman (Independent)
Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata - Member
Sheikh Kausar Ejaz - Member 

• Human Recourse and Remuneration Committee
Mr. Muhammad Naseem - Chairman (Independent)
Mr. Adeel Shahid Tata - Member
Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata - Member

Principal Activities of the Company
Salfi Textile Mills Limited (STML) (the Company) is incorporated in Pakistan as public limited company and is listed on Pakistan Stock 
Exchange Limited. The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and sale of yarn.  

Development & Performance of the Company’s Business
June-2018 June-2017 Variation

Amount in PKR Amount in PKR %Volumes 

Sales 5,958,498,617 5,284,257,682 12.76%
Cost of Sales (5,285,316,364) (4,892,328,698) 8.03%
Gross Profit 673,182,253 391,928,984 71.76%
Profit before taxation 297,910,074 95,519,703 211.88%
Profit after taxation 234,440,017 36,673,727 539.26%

In a challenging business environment, financial year 2017-18 was year of record performance with highest ever sales Rs.5.958
billion which was 12.76% higher than last year, earning Gross Profit of Rs.673 million. Profit before tax for the year increase by 211%.
due to inventory gains due to efficient buying of raw material and higher domestic and international margin. The Directors and 
management have been closely monitoring the performance of the business with focus on achieving continued improvements in 
productivity and efficiency while optimizing cost and process to ensure sustainable growth of the Company.

The increase in sales revenue is attributable to higher sales volume, increase in selling prices and better product mix. The management 
was focused on improving internal efficiency, product quality and continued its efforts to reduce the cost of doing business. The Company 
is well poised to counter future challenges through additional new measures including innovation, planning and controlling costs, 
operational analysis, expanding product base and prudent financial management. The Company is also constantly exploring business 
development opportunities to expand our foot print in yarn products.
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The company has been successful in achieving its objectives by employing a consistent strategy that emphasizes ethics, quality, 
competitiveness, product diversity, sustainable business practices, and growth in higher value products to the extent possible.

STML produces a range of products which meets a diverse set of market needs and continuously searches for new markets and products.

STML strives to ensure timely access to high quality and low cost raw material by following fair procurement practices, diversified suppliers 
and following the market trends closely. 

We endeavor to achieve zero accidents at our production facility and offices and through extensive employee training in order to foster a 
safe working environment. 

The company places great emphasis on producing products of quality as per specifications to ensure customer satisfaction. 

Change in accounting policy
The current year financial statements have been restated due to change in accounting policy for recording of revaluation surplus on 
property, plant and equipment as part of equity. This change is due to the fact that the provision in Companies Ordinance, 1984 requiring 
revaluation surplus to be recorded as a separate financial statement line item has not been carried forward in the Companies Act, 2017, 
thereby aligning the treatment with International Accounting Standard – 16 (IAS-16).

As a result of this overall equity has increased by Rs.2.289 billion and Rs.1.493 billion for the year ended June 30, 2018 and June 30, 
2017 respectively. Further, gain on revaluation surplus net of deferred tax amounting to Rs. 837 million has been recorded in other 
comprehensive income for the year ended June 30, 2018 to comply with the requirements of IAS–16.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Despite the facts that the Company’s financial performance has significantly improved during the year and was able to overcome many 
barriers yet some uncertainties remain resulting from level of cotton production in the country, local and international cotton pricing, 
international yarn pricing, impact of trade wars between US and China and exchange rate fluctuations may have an impact on the future 
financial results of the Company.

Dividend

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 24, 2018 proposed a cash dividend of Rs .2.00 per share (2017: Nil) 
amounting to Rs. 6.685 million (2017: Nil) subject to the approval of the members at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the 
Company.

Appointment of Auditors 

The present auditors Messrs Deloitte Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. 
The director endorse as to recommendation of the Audit Committee for the re-appointment of Messrs Deloitte Yousuf Adil Chartered 
Accountants as auditors for the financial year ending June 30, 2019 on such terms and conditions and remuneration be decided in AGM.

Subsequent Events 
No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have taken place between the end of the financial 
year and the date of the Report.

Compliance with the Best Practices of Corporate Governance
As required under the Code of Corporate Governance incorporated in the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, the Board is pleased to 
state that the management of the Company is compliant with the best practices of corporate governance. The Board acknowledges its 
responsibility in respect of the corporate and financial reporting framework and thus states that:
• The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 

cash flows and changes in equity.

• Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.

• Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates are 
based on reasonable and prudent judgment. 

• International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial statements.

• The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

• There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

• There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the listing regulations.
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• The highlights of operating and financial data for the last six years are presented in a summarized form in annexure.

• The statement of pattern of shareholding of the Company as at June 30, 2018 is annexed. This statement is prepared in accordance 
with the Code of Corporate Governance.

• During the year under review, four Board of Directors Meetings, four Audit Committee Meetings and four Human Resource & 
Remuneration committee meeting were held. The attendance of the directors is as follow:

Name of Director
Number of Meeting Attended

Board Meeting Audit 
Committee

Human Resource & 
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Anwar Ahmed Tata 4 N/A N/A
Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata 4 N/A N/A
Mr. Adeel Shahid Tata 4 N/A 4
Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata 3 4 4
Mr. Muhammad Naseem 4 4 4
Mr. Aijaz Ahmed Tariq 4 N/A N/A
Sheikh Kausar Ejaz 4 4 N/A

(Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend the Meetings due to their pre-occupations)

• No trading in Company’s shares was carried out by its Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit other 
Executives and their spouse(s) and minor children during the year.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Significant features of remuneration policy of non-executive directors
Non-executive directors including the independent director are entitled only for fee for attending the meetings.

Board Evaluation
As required by the Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017 the Board has developed a mechanism for 
evaluation of performance of the Board of Directors. During the year a comprehensive questioner was circulated among all members of 
the Board for evaluation of performance of the Board of Directors..

Chairman's Review
The Directors of the Company endorse the contents of the Chairman’s review, which is deemed to be a part of the Directors’ report.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Adeel Shahid Tata
Chief ExecutiveKarachi:

Date: September 24, 2018

Salfi Textile Mills Ltd. is committed to achieving tangible, sustainable fulfillment of its corporate social responsibility. During the year under 
review the Company contributed Rs. 1.2 million in Health Sector by collaborating with Bait-ul-Sukoon for health and well-being of the poor 
people of the country.
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

Description 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

OPERATING DATA
Sales Rs.'000'  5,958,499  5,284,258  4,975,583  4,448,356  4,612,764  3,925,774 
Cost of Goods Sold Rs.'000'  5,285,316  4,892,329  4,957,343  4,179,356  4,216,657  3,243,068 
Gross Profit Rs.'000'     673,183     391,929       18,240     269,000     396,107     682,706 
Profit / (Loss) Before Taxation Rs.'000'     297,910       95,520    (379,809)    (103,411)       (1,185)     329,209 
Profit / (Loss)  After Taxation Rs.'000'     234,440       36,674    (384,225)    (145,721)       34,822     360,187 

FINANCIAL DATA
Equity Balance Rs.'000'  3,259,671  2,184,663  2,147,533  2,536,541  2,190,706  2,091,031 
Property, Plant & Equipment Rs.'000'  4,220,703  3,388,009  3,454,697  3,359,644  2,520,999  2,356,478 
Current Assets Rs.'000'  2,174,616  2,236,467  1,516,316  1,698,030  1,320,930  1,538,820 
Current Liabilities Rs.'000'  2,596,250  2,775,394  1,955,210  1,736,002  1,064,409     993,303 

RATIOS
PROFITABILITY RATIOS
Gross Profit Margin % 11.30 7.42 0.37 6.05 8.59 17.39
Opera�ng Profit Margin % 3.93 0.16 (7.80) (2.50) (0.83) 6.96
Net Profit Margin % 3.93 0.69 (7.72) (3.28) 0.75 9.17

LIQUIDITY RATIOS
Current Ra�o Times 0.84 0.81 0.78 0.98 1.24 1.55
Quick Ra�o Times 0.39 0.30 0.37 0.40 0.41 0.46

ACTIVITY / TURNOVER RATIOS
Days in Receivables Days 36.50 28.48 21.64 30.35 19.17 26.32
Accounts Receivable Turnover Times 9.86 12.64 16.63 11.86 18.78 13.68
Inventory Turnover Times 4.76 3.56 6.78 4.37 4.96 3.09
Working Capital Turnover Times (14.13) (9.81) (11.34) (117.15) 17.98 7.20
Total Assets Turnover Times 0.93 0.94 1.00 0.88 1.20 1.01
Return on Total Assets % 3.66 0.65 (7.72) (2.88) 0.90 9.23
Return on Equity % 7.19 1.68 (17.89) (5.74) 1.59 17.23

LEVERAGE RATIOS
Long Term Debt to Equity Ra�o % 16.63 30.51 40.59 31.13 27.06 39.08
Total Debt to Equity  Ra�o % 96.27 157.55 131.63 99.57 75.65 86.58
Long Term Debt to Total Assets Times 0.08 0.12 0.18 0.16 0.15 0.21
Total Debt to Total Assets Times 0.49 0.61 0.57 0.50 0.43 0.46
Equity to Total Assets Times 0.51 0.39 0.43 0.50 0.57 0.54
Interest Coverage Ra�o Times 2.31 1.54 (1.25) 0.29 0.99 3.70

OTHERS
Earning per Shares Rs 70.14 10.97 (114.95) (43.60) 10.42 107.76
Breakup Value of Shares Rs 975.20 653.59 642.48 758.86 655.40 625.58
Cash Dividend % 20.00 - - - 15.00 20.00

------------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000'------------------------------------------------
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
BALANCE SHEET

Description 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Assets

Non Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 4,220,703 3,388,009 3,454,697 3,359,644 2,520,999 2,356,478
Intangible assets 604 256 1,608 2,984 4,359 5,276
Long Term Investments 700 654 699 489 609 417
Long Term Deposit 1,229 1,179 1,037 1,012 1,012 463
Total Non Current Assets 4,223,236 3,390,098 3,458,041 3,364,129 2,526,979 2,362,634

Current Assets
Stores, Spares and loose tools 46,486 37,929 56,041 39,353 36,067 34,570
Stock in Trade 1,111,077 1,375,917 730,729 956,772 849,720 1,049,400
Trade Debtors 604,134 418,036 299,141 375,037 245,653 287,022
Loans and Advances 235,276 250,470 308,383 210,158 130,201 80,906
Trade Deposit & Short Term Prepayment 1,863 1,781 13,770 2,392 1,409 1,464
Other Receivables 73,326 49,417 404 403 1,345 2,430
Other Financial Assets 24,741 24,740 27,536 21,036 4,135 17,212
Sales Tax Refundable 67,996 60,765 34,349 51,741 16,101 12,778
Cash and Bank Balances 9,717 17,412 45,963 41,138 36,298 53,038
Total Current Assets 2,174,616 2,236,467 1,516,316 1,698,030 1,320,930 1,538,820

TOTAL ASSETS 6,397,852 5,626,565 4,974,357 5,062,159 3,847,909 3,901,454

Equity and Liabilities

EQUITY
Share Capital 33,426 33,426 33,426 33,426 33,426 33,426
Reserve 505,889 505,843 505,889 755,678 755,798 755,606
Unappropriated Profit 431,386 152,728 70,821 164,416 280,729 221,868
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and 
equipment 2,288,970 1,492,666 1,537,397 1,583,021 1,120,753 1,080,131
Total Share Capital and Reserves 3,259,671 2,184,663 2,147,533 2,536,541 2,190,706 2,091,031

Non Current Liabilities
Long Term Finances 346,135 587,502 800,261 726,110 538,656 634,120
Deferred Liabilities 195,796 79,006 71,353 63,506 54,138 183,000
Total Non Current Liabilities 541,931 666,508 871,614 789,616 592,794 817,120

Current Liabilities
Trade and other Payables 280,051 285,117 638,508 406,684 389,073 307,615
Unclaimed Dividend 1,121 1,124 1,124 1,124 1,070 910
Interest/ mark-up accrued on borrowings 59,857 43,207 27,711 46,776 24,799 32,703
Short Term Borrowings 1,951,038 2,184,746 1,080,060 1,109,508 499,909 603,946
Current Portion of Long Term Finances 241,368 208,657 167,080 131,870 121,554 48,129
Provision for income tax 62,815 52,543 40,727 40,040 28,004 -
Total Current Liabilities 2,596,250 2,775,394 1,955,210 1,736,002 1,064,409 993,303

TOTAL LIABILITES & EQUITY 6,397,852 5,626,565 4,974,357 5,062,159 3,847,909 3,901,454

---------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000'--------------------------------------------
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
BALANCE SHEET VERTICAL ANALYSIS

Description 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
% % % % % %

Assets

Non Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 65.97 60.21 69.45 66.37 65.52 60.40
Intangible assets 0.01 0.00 0.03 0.06 0.11 0.14
Long Term Inventments 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.01
Long Term Deposit 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.03 0.01
Total Non Current Assets 66.01 60.25 69.52 66.46 65.67 60.56

Current Assets
Stores, Spares and loose tools 0.73 0.67 1.13 0.78 0.94 0.89
Stock in Trade 17.37 24.45 14.69 18.90 22.08 26.90
Trade Debtors 9.44 7.43 6.01 7.41 6.38 7.36
Loans and Advances 3.68 4.45 6.20 4.15 3.38 2.07
Trade Deposit & Short Term Prepayment 0.03 0.03 0.28 0.05 0.04 0.04
Other Receivables 1.15 0.88 0.01 0.01 0.03 0.06
Other Financial Assets 0.39 0.44 0.55 0.42 0.11 0.44
Sales Tax Refundable 1.06 1.08 0.69 1.02 0.42 0.33
Cash and Bank Balances 0.15 0.31 0.92 0.81 0.94 1.36
Total Current Assets 33.99 39.75 30.48 33.54 34.33 39.44

TOTAL ASSETS 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Equity and Liabilities

EQUITY
Share Capital 0.52 0.59 0.67 0.66 0.87 0.86
Reserve 7.91 8.99 10.17 14.93 19.64 19.37
Unappropriated Profit 6.74 2.71 1.42 3.25 7.30 5.69
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and 
equipment 35.78 26.53 30.91 31.27 29.13 27.69
Total Share Capital and Reserves 50.95 38.83 43.17 50.11 56.93 53.60

Non Current Liabilities
Long Term Finances 5.41 10.44 16.09 14.34 14.00 16.25
Deferred Liabilities 3.06 1.40 1.43 1.25 1.41 4.69
Total Non Current Liabilities 8.47 11.85 17.52 15.60 15.41 20.94

Current Liabilities
Trade and other Payables 4.38 5.07 12.84 8.03 10.11 7.88
Unclaimed dividend 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.03 0.02
Interest/ mark-up accrued on borrowings 0.94 0.77 0.56 0.92 0.64 0.84
Short Term Borrowings 30.50 38.83 21.71 21.92 12.99 15.48
Current Portion of Long Term Finances 3.77 3.71 3.36 2.61 3.16 1.23
Provision for income tax 0.98 0.93 0.82 0.79 0.73 -
Total Current Liabilities 40.58 49.33 39.31 34.29 27.66 25.46

TOTAL LIABILITES & EQUITY 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Annual Report 2018

16 SALFI TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED



ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT

Description 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Sales 5,958,499 5,284,258 4,975,583 4,448,356 4,612,764 3,925,774
Cost of Goods Sold 5,285,316 4,892,329 4,957,343 4,179,356 4,216,657 3,243,068
GROSS PROFIT 673,183 391,929 18,240 269,000 396,107 682,706

Distribution cost 89,382 105,031 122,320 128,442 145,610 142,092
Administrative expenses 99,846 95,314 106,023 90,630 82,574 67,638
Other operating expenses 22,067 6,523 8,808 15,701 26,680 77,638
Financial Cost 227,975 176,473 168,992 145,298 179,566 121,946

439,270 383,341 406,143 380,071 434,430 409,314

OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 233,913 8,588 (387,903) (111,071) (38,323) 273,392

Other Income 63,997 86,932 8,094 7,660 37,138 5,639
Share of Profit from Associates net of tax - - - - - 50,178

63,997 86,932 8,094 7,660 37,138 55,817

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXES 297,910 95,520 (379,809) (103,411) (1,185) 329,209

Provision for taxation (63,470) (58,846) (4,416) (42,310) 36,007 30,978

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 234,440 36,674 (384,225) (145,721) 34,822 360,187

--------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000' -----------------------------------------------
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT VERTICAL ANALYSIS

Description 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Sales 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Cost of Goods Sold 88.70 92.58 99.63 93.95 91.41 82.61
GROSS PROFIT 11.30 7.42 0.37 6.05 8.59 17.39

Distribu�on cost 1.50 1.99 2.46 2.89 3.16 3.62
Administra�ve expenses 1.68 1.80 2.13 2.04 1.79 1.72
Other opera�ng expenses 0.37 0.12 0.18 0.35 0.58 1.98
Financial Cost 3.83 3.34 3.40 3.27 3.89 3.11

7.37 7.25 8.16 8.54 9.42 10.43

OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 3.93 0.16 (7.80) (2.50) (0.83) 6.96

Other Income 1.07 1.65 0.16 0.17 0.81 0.14
Share of Profit from Associates
net of tax - - - - - 1.28

1.07 1.65 0.16 0.17 0.81 1.42

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXES 5.00 1.81 (7.63) (2.32) (0.03) 8.39

Provision for taxa�on (1.07) (1.11) (0.09) (0.95) 0.78 0.79

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 3.93 0.69 (7.72) (3.28) 0.75 9.17

% % % % % %
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

NO. OF TOTAL SHARES
SHAREHOLDERS FROM TO HELD

754 1 100 32,542

151 101 500 33,147

27 501 1000 20,936

29 1001 5000 59,400

3 5001 10000 28,287

1 10001 15000 14,500

1 15001 20000 16,750

2 25001 30000 57,500

1 100001 105000 104,645

1 365001 370000 366,300

2 1300001 1305000 2,608,563

972 3,342,570

SHARES HELD PERCENTAGENUMBER OF
SHAREHOLDER

9 2,632,788 78.77

1 366,300 10.96

3 17,958 0.54

2 10,127 0.30

1 104,645 3.13

7 5,143 0.15

949 205,609 6.15

972 3,342,570 100.00

SHARE-HOLDING

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

Directors, their Spouse(s) and  Minor Children

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties

Public Sector companies & Corporations

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking 
Finance Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, 
Modarbas and pension funds

Others

General Public

Mutual Funds
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1 366,300

1 16,750
1 1,150
1 58
3 17,958

1 560

1 9,567

2 10,127

1 104,645

1 336
1 20
1 50
1 55
1 1
1 61
1 4,620
7 5,143

GENERAL PUBLIC
Local 949 205,609

Grand Total 972 3,342,570

Shareholders Holding 5% or more Shares Held Percentage
1,303,732 39.00
1,304,831 39.04

366,300 10.96

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKINGS AND 
RELATED PARTIES
Island Textile Mills Ltd.

PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES AND CORPORATIONS
Investment Corporation of Pakistan
IDBL (ICP Unit)

M/S The Administrator Abandoned Properties
M/S Naseer Shahid Ltd.

B.R.R. Investments (Pvt.) Ltd.

National Bank of Pakistan

BANKS, DEVELOPMENT FINANCE INSTITUTIONS, NON-
BANKING FINANCE COMPANIES, INSURANCE 
COMPANIES, TAKAFUL, MODARBAS AND PENSION 
FUNDS
Central Insurance Company Ltd.
Trustee National Bank of Pakistan Employee Pension 
Fund

Trustee National Bank of Pakistan Emp Benevolent Fund Trust

Mr. Anwar Ahmed Tata
Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata
Island Textile Mills Ltd.

MUTUAL FUNDS
CDC Trustee National Investment (Unit) Trust

Fikree's (SMC-Pvt) Ltd.

OTHERS

Fateh Textile Mills Ltd.
Maple Leaf Capital Ltd.

Detail Categories of Shareholders

Shares HeldNo. of 
Shareholders

Mr. Anwar  Ahmed Tata ( Chairman/Director ) 1 1,303,732
1 1,304,831
1 8,720

Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata ( Director ) 1 2,505
Mr. Muhammad Naseem ( Director ) 1 2,500

1 2,500
Sheikh Kausar Ejaz ( Director ) 1 2,500
Mrs. Parveen Anwar (W/o Mr. Anwar Ahmed Tata) 1 2,750
Mrs. Saiqa Shahid (W/o Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata) 1 2,750

9 2,632,788

DIRECTORS, THEIR SPOUSE(S) & MINOR CHILDREN

Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata ( Director )

Mr. Aijaz Ahmed Tariq ( Director )

Mr. Adeel Shahid Tata ( Chief Executive )
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

Name of Company: Salfi Textile Mills Limited.
Year ended: June 30, 2018

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are Seven as per the following

a. Male: 7
b. Female: 0

2. The composition of board is as follow:

Category Names
Independent Director Mr. Muhammad Naseem

Executive Director Mr. Shahid Anwar Tata
Mr. Adeel Shahid Tata

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Anwar Ahmed Tata
Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata
Mr. Aijaz Ahmed Tariq
Shiekh Kausar Ejaz

The Chairman of the board is not a non-executive director as per the Companies Act 2017, due to the beneficial 
owner of the Company and of its associated companies. The Company is in a process to hire a non-executive director.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies, including 
this Company.

4. The Company has prepared a ‘Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 
Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved 
or amended has been maintained except for the policy related to permissible fee for non-executive directors and 
independent directors which are exist in draft form and will approved in upcoming Board of Directors meeting.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by 
Board/Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the 
Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to 
frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board.

8. The Board of directors do not have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in 
accordance with the Act and these Regulations. Such policy is exist in draft form and will approved in upcoming Board 
of Directors meeting.

9. During the year the board did not arrange any training program for its directors. The Company is in process of applying 
for the exemption certificate from Commission as per criteria mentioned in Regulation 20.

10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their 
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment, however, the CFO and Company Secretary of the Company 
is the same person. The Company is in the process of appointing separate person as Company Secretary.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
11. CFO and CEO duly endorse the financial statements before approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a. Audit Committee

i. Mr. Muhammad Naseem -Chairman
ii. -Member
iii. Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata -Member

b. HR and Remuneration Committee

i. Mr. Muhammad Naseem -Chairman
ii. Mr. Adeel Shahid Tata -Member
iii. Mr. Bilal Shahid Tata -Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the 
committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as following:

a. Audit Committee - Quarterly
b. HR and Remuneration Committee - Quarterly

15. The board has appointed head of internal who is suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are 
conversant with the policies and procedures of the company. Once, the internal audit manual is finalized, 
Company will outsource its internal audit function to a professional firm. 

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under 
the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that 
they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company 
and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) 
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by ICAP.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other 
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory listing regulations and 
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with. 

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ADEEL SHAHID TATA 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE Karachi

Dated: September 24, 2018

Sheikh Kausar Ejaz
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 51st Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Salfi Textile Mills 
Limited will be held on Monday, the October 22, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. at 5th Floor, Textile Plaza, M. A. Jinnah 
Road, Karachi to transact the following businesses: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To confirm the minutes of the 50st Annual General Meeting held on October 23, 2017

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 
30, 2018 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Report thereon.

3. To appoint Auditors for the year ending June 30, 2019 and fix their remuneration. The retiring auditors, 
M/s. Deloitte Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have offered themselves for 
reappointment.

4. To approve the payment of cash dividend @ 20% (i.e. Rs.2.00 per share), for the year ended June 30, 2018
as recommended by the Board of Directors.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
Ordinary Resolution

5. To consider and pass the following ordinary resolutions:

a) “RESOLVED that the transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated companies 
as disclosed in Note No. 38 of the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018 be and 
are hereby ratified and approved.”

b) “RESOLVED that the Chief Executive Officer of the Company be and is hereby authorized to approve 
all the transactions carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated 
companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2019 and in this connection the Chief Executive 
Officer be and is hereby also authorized to take any and all necessary actions and sign/execute any and 
all such documents/indentures as may be required in this regard on behalf of the Company.”

6. To transact any other ordinary business or businesses with the permission of the Chairman.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Haseeb Hafeezuddeen
Company Secretary  

Karachi:
Dated: October 01, 2018

SalfiTextile Mills Limited
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Notes:
1. The Register of Member and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 15, 

2018 to October 22, 2018 (both days inclusive). Transfer received in order at the office of Share Register, 
M/s Central Depository Company of Pakistan Ltd. CDC, House, 99-B, Block S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-
Faisal, Karachi by the close of business on October 12, 2018 will be considered in time to attend and vote 
at the meeting. 

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting is entitled to appoint another person as his/her proxy 
to attend and vote on his/her behalf. The instrument appointing proxy must be received at the Registered 
Office of the Company duly stamped and signed not later than 48 hours before the meeting.

3. Any individual Beneficial Owner of CDC, entitled to attend and vote at this meeting, must bring his/her 
Original CNIC or Passport to prove his/her identity and in case of Proxy must enclose additionally an 
attested copy of his/her CNIC or Passport. Representatives of corporate members should bring the Board 
of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee. 

4. Members are requested to promptly notify any change in their address.

5. Members are requested to provide their International Banking Account Number (IBAN) together with a 
copy of the Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) to update our records. In case of non-submission, 
all future dividend payments may be withheld.

6. Members are requested to submit declaration (CZ-50) as per Zakat & Ushr Ordinance 1980 for zakat
exemption, if any.

7. UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS & BONUS SHARES Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their 
dividend or bonus shares or did not collect their physical shares, are advised to contact our Share 
Registrar M/s Central Depository Company of Pakistan Ltd. to collect/ enquire about their unclaimed 
dividend or pending shares, if any. Please note that in compliance with Section 244 of the Companies 
Act, 2017, after having completed the stipulated procedure, all dividends unclaimed for a period of three 
(3) years from the date due and payable shall be deposited to the credit of the Federal Government and 
in case of shares, shall be delivered to the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

8. E-DIVIDEND As per Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, in case of a Public listed company, any 
dividend payable in cash shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account 
designated by the entitled shareholders. Therefore, through this notice, all shareholders are requested to 
update their bank account details in the Central Depository System through respective participants. In 
case of physical shares, to provide bank account details to our Share Registrar, M/s Central Depository 
Company of Pakistan Ltd. on E-Dividend mandate form. Please note that after 31st October 2017 all cash
dividends, declared by the Company, will only be remitted to designated bank accounts and not otherwise, 
so please ensure an early update of your particulars to avoid any inconvenience in future.

9. E-Voting Members can exercise their right to demand a poll subject to meeting requirements of Section 
143 -145 of Companies Act, 2017 and applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018.

10. Video Conference Pursuant to SECP Circular No 10 of 2014 dated May 21, 2014, if the Company 
receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing in a 
geographical location to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 7 days prior to the 
date of Annual General Meeting, the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to 
availability of such facility in that city. To avail this facility please provide the information to the Share 
Registrar Office of the Company i.e. Messrs. CDC PAKISTAN LIMITED, CDC House, 99-B, Shahrahe-
Faisal, Karachi PABX No. (+9221) 111-111-500 and email info@cdcpak.com

11. CIRCULATION OF NOTICE OF MEETING & ANNUAL ACCOUNTS With reference to SRO 787(I/2014 
dated 8th September 2014 issued by SECP, shareholders have an option to receive Annual Audited 
Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting through email. Shareholders of the Company are 
requested to give their consent on prescribed format to our Shares Registrar, M/s CDC Pakistan Ltd. at 
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CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi to update our record if they wish to 
receive Annual Audited Financial Statement and Notice of General Meeting through email. However, if a 
shareholder, in addition, request for hard copy of Audited Financial Statements the same shall be 
provided free of cost within seven (7) days of receipt of such request.

12. FILER AND NON FILER STATUS The Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 2018 have made 
certain amendments in Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, whereby different rates are 
prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies. These tax 
rates are as under:
a) For filers of income tax returns 15%. b) For non-filers of income tax returns 20%. 

To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 
20%, all the shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax Payers List (ATL) provided 
on the website of FBR, despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names 
are entered into ATL. 

Statement under Section 134(3)(B) of the Companies Act, 2017 Regarding Special Business 

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business, given in agenda item No. 5 the 
Notice will be considered to be passed by the members. 

1. Agenda Item No. 5(a) of the Notice – Transactions carried out with associated companies during the year 
ended June 30, 2018 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.

The transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated companies (Related 
parties) were being approved by the Board as recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly 
basis pursuant to Section 15 of listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance, Regulation 2017.

During the Board meeting it was pointed out by the Directors that as the majority of Company Directors 
were interested in these transactions due to their common directorship and holding of shares in the 
associated companies, the quorum of directors could not be formed for approval some of these 
transactions specifically, therefore, these transactions have to be approved by the shareholders in 
the General Meeting.

In view of the above, the transactions carried out during the financial year ended June 30, 2018 with 
associated companies shown in note No. 38 of the financial statements are being placed before the 
shareholders for their consideration and approval/ratification. 

The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their 
shareholding in the associated companies.

2. Agenda Item No. 5(b) of the Notice – Authorization to the Chief Executive Officer for the transactions 
carried out and to be carried out with associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 
2019 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.

The Company is expected to be conducting transactions with associated companies in the normal 
course of business. The majority of Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common 
directorship and shareholding in the associated companies. Therefore, such transactions with 
associated companies have to be approved by the shareholders.

The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their 
shareholding in the associated companies.

In order to comply with the provisions of Section 15 of listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance 
Regulation 2017, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive Officer to approve transactions 
carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated companies during the 
ensuing year ending June30, 2019.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF SALFI TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed 
Companies  (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

Note
Reference Description
2 The Chairman of the board is not a non-executive director;
5 Approved policy related to permissible fee for non-executive directors and independent 

directors does not exist;
8
9

Approved policy pertaining to the remuneration of directors does not exist;
Certain directors are exempt from training and such exemption has been applied from 
Commission;

10 The Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary is the same person;

Chartered Accountants 

Place: Karachi
Date: September 24, 2018

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Sal� Textile Mills Limited (the Company) for 
the year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 40 of the Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance re�ects the status of the Company’s compliance with 
the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements 
of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various 
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the �nancial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and 
internal control systems su�cient to plan the audit and develop an e�ective audit approach. We are not required to 
consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an 
opinion on the e�ectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks. 

The  Regulations  require  the  Company  to  place  before  the  Audit  Committee,  and  upon recommendation of the 
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions and 
also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have 
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of 
Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine 
the Company’s process for identi�cation of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were 
undertaken at arm’s length price or not. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance 
does not appropriately re�ect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in 
the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations as re�ected in the 
note reference where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:

Annual Report 2018

26 SALFI TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Annual Report 2018



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SALFI TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Salfi Textile Mills Limited (the Company), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2018, and statement of comprehensive income, 
the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to 
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of 
our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement 
of financial position, statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the 
statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the 
Company's affairs as at June 30, 2018 and of the profit, the comprehensive income, the changes in equity 
and its cash flows for the year then ended.
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Following are the key audit matters:

S. No. Key audit matter How the matter was addressed 
in our audit

1 Revaluation of leasehold land, buildings on 
leasehold land and plant and machinery

• assessed the competence, independence and 
integrity of management’s expert;

As disclosed in note 3.1 to the accompanying financial 
statements, land, building and plant and machinery are 
carried at revaluation model. 
The total net book value of revalued properties as at 
June 30, 2018 is Rs. 4,108 million. 

The revaluation exercise performed by the management 
external valuer (the expert) during the year has resulted 
in a net increase of Rs. 837.7 million versus carrying 
value of Rs. 1,712 million 

Further, the Company has also changed its accounting 
policy relating to presentation and measurement of 
surplus on revaluation of fixed assets with retrospective 
effect as a consequence of the application of the 
Companies’ Act, 2017 (the Act), as explained in detail in 
Note 4

We have considered the above matters to be a key audit 
matter due to the judgements inherent within the 
valuation exercise and significance of the changes in the 
financial statements resulting from the transition to the 
new reporting requirements under the Act.

• discussed with management and challenged the 
appropriateness of the valuation methodology 
adopted by the management expert;

• discussed the reasonableness of the assumptions 
used by expert for e.g: exchange and discount 
rates; 

• checked the relevance, completeness and 
accuracy of source data;

• In respect of the change in accounting policy for 
the accounting and presentation of revaluation 
surplus as referred to in note 4 to the 
accompanying financial statements, considered 
the adequacy and appropriateness of such 
disclosure; and

• assessed the accounting implications in 
accordance with the applicable financial reporting 
standards.

2 Current and deferred tax

As disclosed in note 3.19, 20.2 and 32 to the 
accompanying financial statements, the Company has 
recorded tax expense amounting to Rs. 63.47 million.

The Company’s total sales comprise of local and export 
sales and carry different tax implications under The 
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. These include incidence, 
tax rates and admissibility of relevant expenses. To 
determine the tax liability for such companies, The 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) 
has issues a Technical Release (TR 27) to facilitate the 
allocation of admissible expenses between local and 
export sales. 

The calculation of deferred tax asset/liability also entails 
certain assumptions in developing a reasonable estimate 
for expected turnover and composition thereof based on 
the said TR

We have considered the above matters to be a key audit 
matter due to the judgements and estimates inherent in 
the calculation of tax expense.

• developed an understanding of management 
process for calculating tax expense;

• assessed the extent to which provisions are 
supported by underlying circumstances and 
determined that they are being made on a basis 
consistent with previous years;

• assessed the appropriateness of provisions 
recorded in the financial statements by using our 
specialist tax knowledge and reviewing the latest 
tax returns filed by the Company; 

• critically analysed and challenged the 
assumptions used by the management in 
calculating tax expense; and

• ensured that the tax calculated is in accordance 
with the requirements of IAS 12, Income Tax 
Ordinance 2001 and TR 27.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the report of audit 
committee, chairman’s review, director’s report and analysis on financial performance.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 
(XIX of 2017); 

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn 
up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of
account and returns;   

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the 
purpose of the Company’s business; and 

d) no zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ms. Hena Sadiq. 

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi

September 24, 2018Date:
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended June 30, 2018
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE
ANWAR AHMED TATA
CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR

HASEEB HAFEEZUDDEEN
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

ADEEL SHAHID TATA 

2018 2017 2016
(Re-stated) (Re-stated)

NoteASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 5 4,220,702,992 3,388,008,241 3,454,697,470
Intangible assets 6 604,307 256,496 1,607,952
Long-term investments 7 699,470 653,753 699,470
Long-term deposits 1,229,384 1,179,384 1,037,339

4,223,236,153 3,390,097,874 3,458,042,231
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spares and loose tools 8 46,486,039 37,929,131 56,040,828
Stock-in-trade 9 1,111,076,970 1,375,917,453 730,729,126
Trade debts 10 604,134,267 418,035,959 299,140,211
Loans and advances 11 235,275,427 250,469,509 308,383,223
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 12 1,863,219 1,781,189 13,770,266
Other receivables 13 73,326,030 49,417,447 403,811
Other financial assets 14 24,740,448 24,740,448 27,536,451
Sales tax refundable 67,996,099 60,764,881 34,349,104
Cash and bank balances 15 9,716,040 17,411,562 45,962,676

2,174,614,539 2,236,467,579 1,516,315,696

TOTAL ASSETS 6,397,850,692 5,626,565,453 4,974,357,927

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 16 33,425,700 33,425,700 33,425,700
Reserves 17 505,888,640 505,842,923 505,888,640
Unappropriated profit 431,386,450 152,727,917 70,821,218
Surplus on revaluation of 

 property, plant and equipment 18 2,288,969,521 1,492,666,482 1,537,397,073
3,259,670,311 2,184,663,022 2,147,532,631

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term finances 19 346,134,850 587,502,436 800,261,087
Deferred liabilities 20 195,795,537 79,005,829 71,353,231

541,930,387 666,508,265 871,614,318
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 21 280,051,385 285,116,482 638,507,936
Unclaimed dividend 1,120,901 1,123,604 1,124,326
Interest / mark-up accrued on borrowings 22 59,857,085 43,207,289 27,710,972
Short-term borrowings 23 1,951,037,712 2,184,746,433 1,080,060,327
Current portion of long-term finances 19 241,367,586 208,657,459 167,080,368
Provision for income tax 32 62,815,325 52,542,899 40,727,049

2,596,249,994 2,775,394,166 1,955,210,978
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 24

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,397,850,692 5,626,565,453 4,974,357,927

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

…..……….………. Rupees ……….…………...
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

 2018 2017
Note

Sales - net 25 5,958,498,617 5,284,257,682

Cost of goods sold 26 (5,285,316,364) (4,892,328,698)

Gross profit 673,182,253 391,928,984

Distribution cost 27 (89,382,201) (105,031,432)

Administrative expenses 28 (99,845,006) (95,313,453)

Other operating expenses 29 (22,067,156) (6,523,212)

Finance cost 30 (227,975,180) (176,473,484)
(439,269,543) (383,341,581)

233,912,710 8,587,403

Other income 31 63,997,364 86,932,300

Profit before taxation 297,910,074 95,519,703

Taxation 32 (63,470,057) (58,845,976)

Profit for the year 234,440,017 36,673,727

Other comprehensive income for the year

Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability 20.1.3 2,832,604 502,381
Gain on leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land and plant and machinery 944,848,790 -
Less: deferred tax thereon (107,159,839) -

840,521,555 502,381
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Unrealised gain / (loss) on remeasurement of available-for-sale investment 7.1 45,717 (45,717)

Total other comprehensive income 840,567,272 456,664

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,075,007,289 37,130,391

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 33 70.14 10.97

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

……….Rupees……….

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
ANWAR AHMED TATA
CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR

HASEEB HAFEEZUDDEEN
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

ADEEL SHAHID TATA 



CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
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 2018 2017
Note

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation 297,910,074 95,519,703

Adjustments for

Depreciation 5.2 143,816,020 143,264,292
Amortization 6 229,010 1,351,456
Provision for staff gratuity 30,846,346 27,484,418
Provision for compensated absences 5,968,896 5,013,233
Provision for doubtful debts 10.5 - 509,434
Finance cost 30 227,975,180 176,473,484
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 31 (71,274) (977,997)

Operating cash flows before working capital 706,674,252 448,638,023

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools (8,556,908) 18,111,697
Stock in trade 264,840,483 (645,188,327)
Trade debts (186,098,308) (119,405,182)
Loans and advances 5,309,365 68,783,534
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments (82,030) 11,989,077
Other receivables (23,908,583) (49,013,636)
Sales tax refundable (7,231,218) (26,415,777)

Decrease in current liabilities
Trade and other payables (5,065,097) (353,391,454)

Cash generated  from / (used in) operations 745,881,956 (645,892,045)

Finance cost paid (211,325,384) (160,977,167)
Income taxes paid (43,312,914) (57,899,946)
Staff gratuity paid (18,725,631) (18,680,529)
Compensated absences paid (5,627,148) (5,662,143)

Net cash generated  from / (used in) operating activities 466,890,879 (889,111,830)

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (32,948,318) (80,307,737)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 5.4 1,357,621 4,710,671
Other financial assets - 2,796,003
Purchase of Intangible asset (576,821) -
Long-term deposits paid (50,000) (142,045)

Net cash used in investing activities (32,217,518) (72,943,108)

……….Rupees……….
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C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of long-term finances (208,657,459) (171,181,560)
Short-term borrowings (paid off) / obtained - net (305,639,027) 198,487,493
Payment of unclaimed dividend (2,703) (722)

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (514,299,189) 27,305,211

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents   (A+B+C) (79,625,828) (934,749,727)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (1,252,856,988) (318,107,261)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 34 (1,332,482,816) (1,252,856,988)

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
ANWAR AHMED TATA
CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR

HASEEB HAFEEZUDDEEN
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

ADEEL SHAHID TATA 

 2018 2017
Note ……….Rupees……….



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
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Capital Reserve

Share capital
General 
reserve

Note

Balance at June 30, 2016 33,425,700 500,000,000 5,996,360 (107,720) 70,821,218 - 610,135,558

Impact of re-statement - note 4 - - - - - 1,537,397,073 1,537,397,073

Balance as at July 1, 2016 re-stated 33,425,700 500,000,000 5,996,360 (107,720) 70,821,218 1,537,397,073 2,147,532,631

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - - - 36,673,727 - 36,673,727

Other comprehensive income
Gain/(loss) on remeasurement of :
  Investment classified available for sale - - - (45,717) - - (45,717)
  Defined benefit liability - - - - 502,381 - 502,381
Other comprehensive income - - - (45,717) 502,381 - 456,664

- - - (45,717) 37,176,108 - 37,130,391

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of property, 
 plant and equipment on account of:

-incremental depreciation - - - - 43,476,930 (43,476,930) -
-disposal 18 - - - - 1,253,661 (1,253,661) -

- - - - 44,730,591 (44,730,591) -
Balance at June 30, 2017 re-stated 33,425,700 500,000,000 5,996,360 (153,437) 152,727,917 1,492,666,482 2,184,663,022

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year - - - - 234,440,017 - 234,440,017

Other comprehensive income

Gain on leasehold land, buildings on

leasehold land and plant and
machinery - net of tax - - - - - 837,688,951 837,688,951

Gain on remeasurement of :
  Investment classified available for sale - - - 45,717 - - 45,717

  Defined benefit liability - - - - 2,832,604 - 2,832,604

Other comprehensive income - - - 45,717 2,832,604 - 2,878,321
- - - 45,717 237,272,621 837,688,951 1,075,007,289

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of property, 
 plant and equipment on account of:

-incremental depreciation - - - 41,073,515 (41,073,515) -
-disposal 18 - - - 312,397 (312,397) -

- - - - 41,385,912 (41,385,912) -

Balance at June 30, 2018 33,425,700 500,000,000 5,996,360 (107,720) 431,386,450 2,288,969,521 3,259,670,311

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Total

Other reserve  
(See 17 Note)

Unrealised 
loss on 

investment 
available-for-

sale

Unappropriated 
profit

Revalution
Surplus

………………………………………………….……………… Rupees …………………….………………………………………

Revenue Reserves

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
ANWAR AHMED TATA
CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1.

1.1 Significant transactions and events affecting the company’s financial position and performance

-

-

-

2.

2.1

2.2

-   certain financial instruments measured at fair value.

2.3

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for:

-   certain property, plant and equipment measured at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation therein;
-   recognition of certain staff retirement benefits at present value; and

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is Company's functional and presentation
currency.

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Salfi Textile Mills Limited (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan on January 05, 1968 under
the Companies Act, 1913 (repealed)now The Companies' Act 2017 and listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The
registered officeof the Company is situated at 6th floor Textile Plaza, M.A. Jinnah Road, Karachi in the province of Sindh.
The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and sale of yarn. The Company's manufacturing facilities are
located at Landhi Industrial Estate, Karachi in the Province of Sindh.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statement have been prepared under accounting and reporting standard as applicable in
Pakistan.The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017 and provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. Where provisions of
and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued
under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, requires management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
prospectively commencing from the period of revision. Areas where judgments and estimates made by the
management that may have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are included
in the following notes:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 2.4.

Applicability of the Companies Act, 2017 amounts reported for the previous period are restated. For detailed
information please refer note 2.5 and note 4.

The Company has carried out a revaluation excersise of its leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land and
plant and machinery. For details information please refer note 18.

Devaluation of Pak Rupee with USD affecting the export sales which results in exchange gain.



Annual Report 2018

38 SALFI TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

-    valuation of stores and spares and stock-in-trade (note 3.3 and 3.4)
-    impairment of financial and non-financial assets (note 3.9)

-    contigencies and provisions (note 3.17)
-    provision for trade debts   (note 3.5)

2.5
a) Amendments which became effective during the year

Standards / Amendments / Interpretation

- elimination of duplicative disclosures with the IFRS disclosure requirements; and
- incorporation of significant additional disclosures.

b) Standards,interpretation and amendments that are not yet effective

Standards / Amendments / Interpretation

The Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) has also brought certain changes with regard to preparation and
presentation of annual and interim financial statements of the Company. These changes also include
change in respect of recognition criteria of surplus on revaluation of fixed assets as more fully explained in
note 4, change in nomenclature of primary statements,etc.

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' -
Amendments as a result of the disclosure initiative

January 01, 2017

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Recognition of 
deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

January 01, 2017

Effective date (accounting 
periods beginning on or after) 

-    useful lives of property, plant and equipment (note 3.1)

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods,
beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the
amendments are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant
impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Further, the disclosure requirements contained in the Fourth Schedule to the Act have been revised,
resulting in the:

-    taxation (note 3.19)

Initial application of standards and amendments to existing standards

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2018.
These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Company's operations
or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain
additional disclosures. 

-    revaluation of certain items of property, plant and equipment (note 3.1)

-    useful lives of intangible assets (note 3.2)

-    staff retirement benefit - gratuity scheme (note 3.15)

IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts': Amendments regarding the interaction 
of IFRS 4 and IFRS 9.

Amendments to IFRS 2 'Share-based Payment' - Clarification on the 
classification and measurement of share-based payment 
transactions

Effective date (accounting 
periods beginning on or after) 

January 01, 2018

An entity choosing to apply the 
overlay approach retrospectively to 
qualifying financial assets does so 

when it first applies IFRS 9. An 
entity choosing to apply the deferral 
approach does so for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 
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Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.

2.6 IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' Impact Assessment 

2.6.1

Classification and measurement of financial assets

-

-

IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments': Clarifies the 
accounting treatment in relation to determination of taxable profit (tax 
loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax 
rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under 
IAS 12 'Income Taxes'.

IFRIC 22 'Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance 
Consideration': Provides guidance on transactions where 
consideration against non-monetary prepaid asset / deferred income 
is denominated in foreign currency.

Amendments to IAS 40 'Investment Property': Clarification on 
transfers of property to or from investment property

January 01, 2018. Earlier 
application is permitted.

January 01, 2019

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' was issued on July 24, 2017. This standard is adopted locally by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and is effective from accounting periods beginning on or
after July 01, 2018. 

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are as follows;

All recognized financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. 

January 01, 2019

July 01, 2018

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments 
regarding prepayment features with negative compensation and 
modifications of financial liabilities

January 01, 2018. Earlier 
application is permitted.

January 01, 2019

January 01, 2019

January 01, 2019

Amendments to IAS 28 'Investments in Associates and Joint 
Ventures' - Amendments regarding long-term interests in an 
associate or joint venture that form part of the net investment in the 
associate or joint venture but to which the equity method is not 
applied. 

Amendments to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits' - Amendments regarding 
plan amendments, curtailments or settlements.

Debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. 

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - This standard will supersede IAS 39 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement upon its 
effective date.

IFRS 16 'Leases': This standard will supersede IAS 17 'Leases' upon 
its effective date.

IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customer' - This standard will 
supersede IAS 18, IAS 11, IFRIC 13, 15 and 18 and SIC 31 upon its 
effective date.

July 01, 2018

Standards / Amendments / Interpretation Effective date (accounting 
periods beginning on or after) 
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-

-

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss, 
IFRS 9 requires as follows:
-

-

Impairment of financial assets
-

2.6.2 Impact assessment

-   IFRS 14 – Regulatory Deferral Accounts
-   IFRS 17 – Insurance Contracts

Based on the analysis of Company's financial assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2018 considering facts
and circumstances that exists at that date, the Company have assessed the impact of IFRS 9 to the
financial statements as follows;
Financial assets classified as loans and receivables are held with a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding. These financial assets will qualify to be classified and measured at "Amortised cost" upon
application of IFRS 9. 

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

-   IFRS 1 – First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

All other debt investments and equity investments are measured at their fair value at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. 

In addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognized in profit or loss. 

The amount of change in the fair value of a financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of such
changes in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss. 

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognized. 

- Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms that
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding are generally measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income "FVTOCI". 
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3.2

3.3

Depreciation is charged to income applying the reducing balance method at the rates specified in note 5.
Depreciation on all additions in fixed assets is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use and
on disposals upto the month preceding the month of disposal.

The depreciation method and assets' useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are recognised as separate
items of property plant and equipment. 

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Improvements are
capitalised when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. Assets so replaced, if any, are derecognised.

Intangible assets with a definite useful life are amortised on a straight line basis over its useful life. Amortization on
all additions in intangible assets is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use and on disposals
upto the month of disposal. Amortisation charge is recognised in the profit and loss account. The rates of
amortization are disclosed in note 6.

Stores, spares and loose tools

These are valued at cost less allowance for obselete and slow movin items. The cost is determined on moving
average basis less allowance for obsolete and slow moving items. Stores and spares in transit are stated at invoice 
values plus other charges incurred thereon upto the reporting date.

Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the profit and loss account, and the related surplus / deficit on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to unappropriated profits.

Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any impairment loss, if any. All expenditures including borrowing
cost as referred in Note 3.16, connected to specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are
carried under CWIP. Items are transferred to operating assets as and when assets are ready for their intended use.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the
asset will flow to the Company and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are generally recognised as an
expense as incurred. However, costs that are directly associated with identifiable software and have probable
economic benefits exceeding one year, are recognised as an intangible asset. Direct costs include the purchase
cost of software and related overheads. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at
cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any, thereon.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1
Property, plant and equipment except leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land and plant and machinery are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

Leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land and plant and machinery are stated at revalued amounts being the fair
value at the date of revaluation, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Revaluations are performedwith sufficient regularity so that the fair value and carrying value do not differ materially
at the reporting date.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

Property, plant and equipment
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Where NRV charge subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the related items is also increased to the extent
that the revised carrying value does not exceed the amount that would have been determined had no NRV charge
been recognised. A reversal of NRV is recognised in the profit and loss account.

3.5

3.6 Cash and cash equivalents

3.7
Financial assets

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(ii) Loans and receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are stated initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and
subsequently measured at amortized cost. A provision for impairment of trade debts and other receivables is
established where there is an objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables. The amount of provision is charged to the profit and loss
account. Trade debts and other receivables are written off when considered irrecoverable.

Exchange gains or losses arising in respect of trade and other receivables in foreign currency are adjusted from
their respective carrying amounts.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, balances with banks,
highly liquid short-term investments that are convertible to known amount of cash and are subject to insignificant
risk of change in value, and short-term running finances.  Running finances under mark-up arrangements are shown 
with short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.
Financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets at initial recognition in the following categories depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired:

Trade debts and other receivables

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset is classified as
held for trading if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term and are classified as
current assets.

Loans and receivables are non-derivativefinancial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than twelve
months after the reporting date, which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables
comprise trade debts, loans, advances, deposits, other receivables and cash and bank balances in the
balance sheet.

3.4 Stock-in-trade

- Raw material - at  moving average cost.
- Material in transit  - at invoice value plus other charges incurred upto reporting date.
- Work-in-process -  at average manufacturing cost.
- Finished goods  - at average manufacturing cost.

Waste stock is valued and recorded at net realizable value.

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on the following basis:

Average manufacturing cost signifies, in relation to work in process and finished goods, the monthly averagecost
which consists of prime cost and appropriate manufacturing overheads.

Net realizable value (NRV) represents the estimated selling price at which the inventories can be realized in the
normal course of business less estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to make sale.
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(iii)

(iv)

3.8 Derivatives

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at 
fair value. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method.

Changes in the fair value of securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in other comprehensive income are included in the profit and loss account as a
reclassification adjustment. Mark-up on available-for-saledebt securities calculated using the effective interest rate
method is recognised in the profit and loss account. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the profit and loss account as part of other income when the Company’s right to receive payments is
established. Amortization of premium on acquisition of the investments is carried out using the effective yield
method and charged to profit and loss account.
The fair values of quoted equity investments are based on current market prices. Subsequent to initial
measurement equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost less impairment in value, if any.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction
cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective yield method.

A financial liability is derecognised when obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the profit and loss account.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Derivativesare initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair values. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as 
liabilities when fair value is negative. Any change in the fair value of derivativefinancial instruments is taken to the
profit and loss account.

Available-for-sale 

Held to maturity

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or the management intends to dispose of the investments within twelve months from the reporting
date.

Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity, where management has intention
and ability to hold till maturity are classified in this category.

All financial assets are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade date (the date on which
the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset). Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss
account.
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3.10

3.11 Foreign currency transactions and translation

3.12 Share capital

3.13

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet, if the
Company has a legal enforceable right to set off the balances and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rate prevailing at the dates of
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at year end into Pak Rupees using 
the exchange rate at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign 
currency transactions and from the translations of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at reporting date are included in profit and loss account.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recorded at their face value.

Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved for distribution to shareholders.

Non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets except deferred tax
asset and stock in trade may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values
exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting
impairment loss is recognized in profit and loss account. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less costs to sell and value in use.

An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognised. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit and loss account, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as an
increase in revaluation surplus.

3.9 Impairment

Financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if,
and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred loss event) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that any investment is impaired. 
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit and loss account as a reclassification adjustment.
Impairment losses recognised in the profit and loss account on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale
are not reversed through the profit and loss account.
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3.16 Borrowings

3.17 Provisions

3.18

obligations under the schemes on the basis of actuarial valuation and charged to profit and loss and other
comprehensive income. The most recent valuation was carried out as at June 30, 2018 using Projected Unit Credit
Method. The amount recognized in the balance sheet represents the present value of defined benefit obligations.
Remeasurement which comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in other comprehensive
income.

Defined benefit plan - Non workmen

The Company also maintains a retirement plan for all its employees under non-workmen category. Under this plan,
every eligible employee is entitled to receive benefit of one month salary based on last month of each year's
service. The Company accounts for liability of each employee at year end and such liability is treated as full and
final with respect to that year. In future years, the liability amount is not revised for any increase or decrease in
salary of any non-workmen.

Compensated absences

The Company provides for compensated absences of its employees on unavailed balance of leaves in the period in
which it is earned. Under the policy, leaves of 14 and 10 days for workmen and non-workmen category respectively
can be accumulated and carried forward. 

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently stated at
amortized cost. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to
defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses
arising in respect of borrowings in foreign currency are added in the carrying amount of the borrowing. 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of the past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. However, provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Trade and other payables
Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to
be paid in future for goods and services received whether billed to the Company or not.

3.14

3.15

Defined benefit plan - Workmen
The Company operates a gratuity scheme for all its employees under workmen category who have completed the
minimum qualifying period of service as defined under the respective scheme. Provisions are made to cover the

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

Staff retirement benefits

The Company has categorized its employees into workmen and non-workmen for post-employment benefits that
comprise defined benefit plan and other staff retirement benefits respectively. Both plans are un-funded. The details
of plans are as follows:

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of land, plant and machinery and buildings are recognised,
net of tax, in other comprehensive income and accumulated in reserves in shareholders’ equity. To the extent that
the increase reverses a decrease previously recognised in statement of profit or loss, the increase is first
recognised in profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognised in
other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all other decreases
are charged to profit or loss. Each year, the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of the asset charged to profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset’ s original cost, net of tax, is
reclassified from the revaluation surplus to retained earnings. The above policy has changed as a result of adoption
of Companies' Act, 2017 and its impact is discussed in detail in Note 4.
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3.20

-

-

3.21 Borrowing cost

3.22

3.23

the reporting date. In this regard, the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income expected to be subject to
final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the requirement of Accounting Technical Release - 27 of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business.

Sales are recorded on dispatch of goods or on segregation of goods for delivery against confirmed
customer's orders where risks and rewards are transferred to the customer.

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
applicable effective interest rate.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except where such costs
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset in which case such
costs are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization are determined
using effective interest rate method.

Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Segment reporting
Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Company considers Chief Executive as its CODM who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of its internal reporting
structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable segment; however, certain information about the
Company’s products, as required by the approved accounting standards, is presented in note 42 to these financial
statements.

3.19 Taxation

Current

Deferred

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current tax rates after taking into account tax
credits and rebates available, if any or on turnover at the specified rates or Alternate Corporate Tax as defined in
section 113C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, whichever is higher. The charge for current tax also includes
adjustments, where necessary, relating to prior years which arise due to assessment framed / finalized during the
year.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method for all temporary differences at the balance sheet
date between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, after
considering, the effects on deferred taxation on the portion of income subject to final tax regime.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax asset is recognized for all
deductible temporary differences and carried forward unused tax losses, if any, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which such temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized.
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The effect of change in accounting policy is summarised below:

A s
previo usly
repo rted

A s
re-stated

R e -
statement

A s
previo usly
repo rted

A s
re-stated

R e -
statement

Effect on statement of

financial position

Surplus on revaluation of

property, plant and equipment      1,492,666,482                                   -           (1,492,666,482)         1,537,397,073                                            -                    (1,537,397,073)

Share capital and reserves                              -             1,492,666,482           1,492,666,482                                -                      1,537,397,073                    1,537,397,073 

Effect on statement of
changes in equity

Capital reserve                              -             1,492,666,482           1,492,666,482                                -                      1,537,397,073                    1,537,397,073 

A s at  June 30, 2016A s at  June 30, 2017

……….……….……….…….…….…….…….…….…….……….……….……….R upees……….……….……….…….…….…….……….……….……….…….…….…….

4. Changes In Accounting Policy

-

Section 235 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 relating to accounting treatment and presentation of the surplus
on revaluation of fixed assets has not been carried forward in the Companies Act, 2017. Consequently, In accordance
with the requirements of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, treatment of surplus
on revaluation of fixed assets would be presented under equity.

As a result of this change, the treatment of surplus on revaluation would be as follows:

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of land, building and plant and machinery to be
recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive income and accumulated in reserves in shareholders’ equity. To the
extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously recognised in statement of profit or loss, the increase
would first be recognised in statement of profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same
asset would first be recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable
to the asset; all other decreases would be charged to statement of profit or loss. Each year, the difference between 
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss and
depreciation based on the asset’ s original cost, net of tax, would be reclassified from the revaluation surplus on
asset to retained earnings.Revaluation surplus of the asset will be directly transferred to equity upon disposal.

Surplus on revaluation would now from a part of reserves and the change in accounting policy has been accounted
for retrospectively in accordance with the requirements of IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors’ and comparative figures have been restated.
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 2018 2017
Note

5.2 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as under:
Cost of goods manufactured 26.1 137,568,846 136,109,837
Administrative expenses 28 6,247,174 7,154,455

143,816,020 143,264,292

5.3

Cost Accumulated Carrying Cost Accumulated Carrying
depreciation value depreciation value

Leasehold land 29,583,387 - 29,583,387 29,583,387 - 29,583,387

595,977,240 136,008,600 459,968,640 593,871,164 111,910,570 481,960,594

Plant and machinery 1,808,636,477 586,578,825 1,222,057,652 1,804,528,684 522,456,997 1,282,071,687
2,434,197,104 722,587,425 1,711,609,679 2,427,983,235 634,367,567 1,793,615,668

5.4 Disposal of property, plant and equipment 

Details of property, plant and equipment disposed off during the year are as follows:

5,686,035 4,399,703 1,286,332 1,357,621 71,289 Negotiation Various
June 30, 2018 5,686,035 4,399,703 1,286,332 1,357,621 71,289

June 30, 2017 11,421,865 7,689,191 3,732,674 4,710,671 977,997

5.5

5.6 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of Company are as follows:

 Total Area
(In acres) 

 Covered
Area

(In sq.ft) 
a) HX-1, Landhi Industrial Area, Karachi. 18.80 818,928
b) W5/02 and W5/03, North Western Industrial 

  Zone, Port Qasim Authority, Karachi. Warehouse 10 435,600

 2018 20175.7 Capital work in progress

Buildings 16,455,832 4,014,128
Plant and machinery 8,345,411 150,000
Mill equipment 113,024 3,720,140
Furniture and fixtures - 363,375

24,914,267 8,247,643

 Buildings on 
leasehold land

Particulars

Assets having 
carrying value less 
than Rs. 500,000 

……….Rupees……….

Revaluation of leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land and plant and machinery had been carried out in 1994, 2003, 2005 (land only),
2008, 2011,2015 and 2018 (leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land and plant and machinery) by independent professional valuer M/s.
Iqbal A. Nanjee & Co. on the basis of market value and depreciated replacement values. Revaluation surplus has been credited to equity
account to comply with the requirements of Companies Act, 2017. Had there been no revaluation, the related figures of leasehold land,
buildings on leasehold land and plant and machinery would have been as follows:

20172018

………………………...……………....…………………Rupees……………………………………...………………

……….…... Rupees…………….

Mode of 
disposal

Cost / 
revalued 
amount

Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value Sale proceeds

Particulars of 
buyers

Forced sales value of leasehold land, building on leasehold land and plant and machinery is Rs. 1,072 million, Rs. 613 million and Rs. 1,601 
million respectively.

Gain / (loss)

…………………………...……..……..…….……Rupees………………..……………………………………………

Location
 Usage of

immovable
property 

Manufacturing facility
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

%

License fee 667,302 576,821 1,244,123 621,803 46,013 667,816 576,307 20
ERP software 6,211,304 - 6,211,304 6,000,307 182,997 6,183,304 28,000 20
June 30, 2018 6,878,606 576,821 7,455,427 6,622,110 229,010 6,851,120 604,307

For comparative period

%
License fee 667,302 - 667,302 512,608 109,195 621,803 45,499 20
ERP software 6,211,304 - 6,211,304 4,758,046 1,242,261 6,000,307 210,997 20
June 30, 2017 6,878,606 - 6,878,606 5,270,654 1,351,456 6,622,110 256,496

7. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS 

2018  2018 2017
Note

  Available-for-sale 
91,439 91,439 Listed shares - Samba Bank Limited 7.1 699,470 653,753

7.1   Listed shares - Samba Bank Limited

As at July 01 653,753 699,470
Unrealized gain / (loss) on remeasurement at fair value 45,717 (45,717)

As at June 30 699,470 653,753

8. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores and spares 46,470,816 37,919,064
Loose tools 15,223 10,067

46,486,039 37,929,131

8.1

------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------------------------------

Cost Amortization Carrying value
at

June 30,
2017

Rate of 
amortizationAt June 30, 

2017

At
July 01,

2016
Additions

At
June 30,

2017

At
July 01,

2016

Charge for the 
year

Cost Amortization Carrying value
at

June 30,
2018

Rate of 
amortizationAt

July 01,
2017

Additions
At

June 30,
2018

At
July 01,

2017

Charge for the 
year

At June 30, 
2018

------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------------------------------

Stores, spares and loose tools include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are not distinguishable.

……….Rupees……….
2017

Number of shares
 of Rs.10 each
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10. TRADE DEBTS 

Considered good
Export - secured 10.1 312,673,721 181,140,298
Local - unsecured 10.3 291,460,546 236,895,661

Considered doubtful

Local - unsecured 1,055,936 1,055,936
Provision for doubtful debts 10.5 (1,055,936) (1,055,936)

- -

604,134,267 418,035,959

10.1 These are secured against letters of credit in favour of the Company.

10.2 Trade debts are non-interest bearing and are generally on 7 to 45 (2017: 7 to 45) days credit term.

10.3

10.4 As at June 30, 2018, local trade debts aggregating Rs. 290.90 million (2017: Rs. 234.04 million) were past due.
During the year Company has made provision amounting to Nil (2017: Rs.1.06 million). The aging of these past due 
trade debts is as follows:

Trade debts local includes Rs. Nil million receivable from Island Textile Mills Limited (related party) against sale of 
raw cotton. The aggregate maximum amount that is outstanding in any of the month end is Rs. 5.86 million.

 2018 2017

10.4.1 Aging of trade debts past due but not impaired

1-30 days 200,003,275 222,430,860
31-90 days       79,748,352       11,113,672 
91 & above       11,149,160            502,719 

     290,900,787      234,047,251 

10.5 The movement in provision for the year is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year         1,055,936            546,502 
Provision for the year                    -              509,434 
Balance at the end of the year         1,055,936         1,055,936 

……….Rupees……….

 2018 2017
Note

9. STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw material 9.1 936,157,237 1,167,741,831
Work-in-process 37,442,750 32,073,431
Finished goods 9.2 125,971,653 169,776,001
Waste 11,505,330 6,326,190

1,111,076,970 1,375,917,453

9.1

9.2 Net realizable value of finished goods was lower than its cost, which resulted in a write down of Rs. 0.41 million
(2017 : Rs. 0.64 million) charged to cost of sales.

……….Rupees……….

 2018 2017
Note ……….Rupees……….

It includes raw material in transit amounting to Rs. 20.23 million (2017 : Rs. 161.39 million). 
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14. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Held to maturity

Term Deposit Receipts 14.1 24,740,448 24,740,448

14.1

 2018 2017
Note

15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash at bank

    In current accounts 8,163,424 16,079,017
    In savings accounts 15.1 846,068 900,206

9,009,492 16,979,223
Cash in hand 706,548 432,339

9,716,040 17,411,562

15.1 These carry effective markup @  3.75% to 4.5% (2017: 3.75% to 4%) per annum.

This represent investment made in term deposit receipts held for a period of six months with a markup rate ranging
between 5.25% to 5.75% (2017: 4.05% to 5.5% ) per annum.

……….Rupees……….

10.6 Following are the details of debtors in relation to export sales:  2018 2017
Jurisdiction Category Note

Asia Letter of credit      312,673,721      181,140,298 

11. LOANS AND ADVANCES
Considered good
Due from employees 11.1 5,011,336 7,324,167
Advance:

to suppliers 7,771,288 7,860,240
against letters of credit 340,579 3,390,647
against expenses 264,947 122,461

Advance income tax 221,887,277 231,771,994

235,275,427 250,469,509

11.1

 2018 2017
Note12. TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Deposits 21,825 21,825
Short-term prepayments 1,841,394 1,759,364

1,863,219 1,781,189
13. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Rebate on export sales 68,853,602 47,598,018
Other receivables 13.1 4,472,428 1,819,429

73,326,030 49,417,447

13.1

These represent short-term interest free loan to employees as per Company's policy. These are adjustable against
salaries and recoverable within a period of one year.

……….Rupees……….

……….Rupees……….

It includes a related party balance amounting to Rs: 0.13 million (2017: Rs. 0.46 million). 
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17.1

18. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY,PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 2018 2017
Note

Balance at July 01 1,492,666,482 1,537,397,073

Revaluation surplus during the year 944,848,790 -

Transferred to unappropriated profit on account of
 - incremental depreciation (41,073,515) (43,476,930)
 - disposal (312,397) (1,253,661)

(41,385,912) (44,730,591)
Related deferred tax liability 20 (107,159,839) -

Balance at June 30 2,288,969,521 1,492,666,482

This represents remission of principal amount payable to an associated undertaking and directors in view of revival
package in the year 1983.

This represents surplus over book values resulting from the revaluation of leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land and
plant and machinery.

……….Rupees……….

16. SHARE CAPITAL
 2018 2017

 2018 2017

Authorized capital
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 50,000,000 50,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid:
In cash 20,000,000 20,000,000
Issued against settlement of loan 10,387,000 10,387,000
Bonus shares 3,038,700 3,038,700

33,425,700 33,425,700

16.1

16.2 Shares of the Company held by an associated company at the reporting date are as follows:

Name of the associated company

Island Textile Mills Limited 366,300 366,300

16.3 The Company has no reserved shares for issuance under options and sales contracts.

 2018 2017
Note17. RESERVES

General reserves 500,000,000 500,000,000
Other reserve 17.1 5,996,360 5,996,360
Unrealized loss on investment classified as available-for-sale  (107,720) (153,437)

505,888,640 505,842,923

303,870 303,870

2018 2017
Number of ordinary ……….Rupees……….

5,000,000 5,000,000

Number of ordinary shares
 of Rs. 10 each

……….Rupees……….

2,000,000 2,000,000
1,038,700 1,038,700

3,342,570 3,342,570

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which caries no right to fixed income. The shareholders are entitled 
to receive dividend from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All shares
rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.
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20. DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Staff gratuity 20.1 86,793,061 77,504,950
Compensated absences 1,842,627 1,500,879
Deferred taxation 18 & 20.2 107,159,849 -

195,795,537 79,005,829

20.1 Staff gratuity

Defined Benefit Scheme
Workmen 20.1.1 42,914,393 39,753,580
Non workmen 20.1.13 43,878,668 37,751,370

86,793,061 77,504,950

20.1.1 Workmen
The details of the workmen - defined benefit scheme obligation based on actuarial valuations carried out by
independent actuary as at June 30, 2018 under the Projected Unit Credit Method, are as follows:

 2018 2017
Note

19. LONG-TERM FINANCES
From banking companies - secured

Term finance 19.1 585,484,554 793,146,857
Car finance 19.2 2,017,882 3,013,038

587,502,436 796,159,895
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities

Term finance (240,300,723) (207,662,249)
Car finance (1,066,863) (995,210)

(241,367,586) (208,657,459)

346,134,850 587,502,436

19.1

19.2

 2018 2017
Note19.3 Long term financing

Balance as on July 01,      796,159,895      967,341,455 
Repayment     (208,657,459)     (171,181,560)

Balance as on      587,502,436      796,159,895 

Less: current portion of long term financing     (241,367,586)     (208,657,459)

346,134,850 587,502,436

……….Rupees……….

……….Rupees……….

These facilities are obtained from a banking company which are secured against first equitable mortgage on fixed
assets and first specific charge over imported machinery and are subject to mark-up rate of 3 - 6 months KIBOR
plus 1 % to 1.25 % per annum (2017: 3 - 6 months KIBOR plus 1 % to 1.25 % per annum). These finances are
repayable in six monthly installments upto March 2023.

These represents finances obtained from a banking company which are secured against vehicles acquired from
such loans and guarantees of the Company. These finances are subject to mark-up at the rate of three months
KIBOR plus 1% per annum (2017: three months KIBOR plus 1% per annum) and are repayable in 60 monthly
installments ending in April 2020.
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 2018 2017
Net liability in the balance sheet

Present value of defined benefit obligation 42,914,393 39,753,580

20.1.2 Expense recognised in the profit and loss account
Current service cost 15,719,281 15,166,913
Interest cost 3,004,936 2,575,474

18,724,217 17,742,387

20.1.3 Remeasurement gains recognised in other
comprehensive income

Actuarial gains on defined benefit obligation
Experience adjustments (2,832,604) (502,381)

(2,832,604) (502,381)

20.1.4 Movement in defined benefit obligation

Balance at July 01 39,753,580 34,719,174
Current service cost 15,719,281 15,166,913
Interest cost 3,004,936 2,575,474
Actuarial gain (2,832,604) (502,381)

Benefits paid during the year (12,730,800) (12,205,600)

Balance at June 30 42,914,393 39,753,580

20.1.5 Movement in net liability in the balance sheet

Balance at July 01 39,753,580 34,719,174

Add: Charge for the year 18,724,217 17,742,387

Remeasurements gain recognised in other comprehensive income (2,832,604) (502,381)

Less: Payment made during the year (12,730,800) (12,205,600)

Balance at June 30 42,914,393 39,753,580

……….Rupees……….

20.1.6 The principal assumptions used in the valuation of gratuity  2018 2017

Discount rate ( % per annum ) 11.25 9

Expected rate of salary increase  ( % per annum ) 11.25 9

Mortality rate

Expected withdrawal rate for actuarial assumptions Moderate Moderate

Adjusted SLIC 
2001-05

Adjusted SLIC 
2001-05



Annual Report 2018

56 SALFI TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Discount rate 1% (5,785,283) 7,225,802
Expected rate of salary increase 1% 7,600,269 (6,161,925)
Mortality age 1 year - -
Withdrawal rates 10% - -

For comparative period
Discount rate 1% (5,505,070) 6,932,089
Expected rate of salary increase 1% 7,283,043 (5,858,293)
Mortality age 1 year - -
Withdrawal rates 10% - -

20.1.8 The scheme exposes the Company to the actuarial risks such as:

Mortality / withdrawal risks

Longevity risks

Salary risks

20.1.9 Expected contribution to the scheme for the year ending June 30, 2019 is Rs. 22,121,947.

20.1.10 The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation in years is 18 (2017: 15.64)

20.1.11 The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefit obligation is:

……….Rupees……….

The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating
the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value 
of defined benefit obligation calculated with the Projected Unit Credit method at the end of the reporting period) has
been applied as when calculating the liability for gratuity recognised within the balance sheet.

The risks that the actual mortality / withdrawal experience is different. The effect depends upon the beneficiaries'
service / age distribution and the benefit.

The risk arises when the actual lifetime of the retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at the plan
level over the entire retiree population.

The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. The risk arises
when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.

Increase in 
assumption

Decrease in 
assumption

Change in 
assumption

Impact on defined benefit obligation

20.1.7Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions are:
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 2018 2017

Year 1 2,966,798 2,530,324
Year 2 4,420,710 3,758,163
Year 3 6,082,453 4,672,394
Year 4 6,660,825 5,426,179
Year 5 7,645,575 6,047,777
Year 6-10 52,431,418 35,447,052
Year 11 & above 606,609,525 125,644,816

20.1.12 There are no plan assets against defined benefit obligation.
 2018 2017

20.1.13 Non workmen

Balance at July 01 37,751,370 34,484,268
Charge for the year 12,122,129 9,742,031
Payment during the year (5,994,831) (6,474,929)
Balance at June 30 43,878,668 37,751,370

20.2 Deferred taxation
Deferred tax asset arising in respect of:

Intangible assets 1,457 -
Trade debts 104,200 -
Carry forward losses 90,623,040 -
Deferred liabilities 8,746,561 -

Deferred tax liabilities arising in respect of:
Property, plant and equipment (99,475,258) -

- -

 2018 2017
21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note

Note

Creditors 57,266,460 45,529,144
Accrued liabilities 21.1 & 21.2 133,242,703 228,006,650
Advance from customers 61,520,708 -
Workers' profit participation fund 21.3 15,987,518 3,323,853
Workers' welfare fund 21.4 11,226,586 5,146,948
Withholding income tax 752,730 1,638,118
Others 54,680 1,471,769

280,051,385 285,116,482

21.1

21.2

Undiscounted payments

Deferred tax asset has not been recognised on remaining carry forward losses on account of unabsorbed
depreciation amounting to Rs. 173 million. The deferred tax asset recognized in the financial statements to the
extent of taxable temporary differences.

----------Rupees---------

……….Rupees……….

This includes Rs. 19.32 million (2017: Rs. 112.36 million) payable to an associated undertaking in respect of power 
charges.

This includes Rs. 79.96 million (2017: Rs. 68.39 million), as provision for Sindh Development and Infrastructure
Cess which was levied by the Sindh Excise and Tax Department on goods entering or leaving the province through
air or sea at prescribed rate under Sindh Finance Ordinance, 2001. The levy was challenged by the Company

……….Rupees……….
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 2018 2017
21.3 Worker's Profits Participation Fund Note

Opening balance         3,323,853                    -   
Add: Allocation for the year 29       15,987,518         3,323,853 
Interest on funds utilized in the Company's business (note 30) 21.4            155,515                    -   

      19,466,886         3,323,853 
Less: Payment made to the fund during the year        (3,479,368)                    -   

Closing balance       15,987,518         3,323,853 

21.3.1 Interest on funds utilized is charged @ 8.25% (2017: Nil) per annum

21.4

 2018 2017
Note

22. INTEREST / MARK-UP ACCRUED ON BORROWINGS

Long-term finances 12,883,005 16,283,812
Short-term borrowings 46,974,080 26,923,477

59,857,085 43,207,289

23. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies - secured
 Finance against import / export 23.1 608,838,856 914,477,883
Short-term running finances 23.2 1,342,198,856 1,270,268,550

23.3 1,951,037,712 2,184,746,433

23.1

23.2

23.3

……….Rupees……….

……….Rupees……….

These facilities are secured against pledge of imported cotton, stock and trust receipts. These facilities are subject
to markup rate of relevant month KIBOR plus 0.75% to 1.25% (2017: three month KIBOR plus 0.65% to 1% and
fixed rate ranging from 1.1% to 2.0% inclusive of LIBOR) per annum. 

These facilities are secured against pledge of stock, hypothecation of current assets & fixed assets. These
facilities are subject to markup rate of relevant month Kibor plus 0.75% to 1.50% (2017: 0.3% to 1%) per annum.

Total facilities available to the Company from various commercial banks amounted to Rs. 4,070 million (2017:
Rs.4,175 million) out of which aggregate unavailed facilities amounted to Rs 2,119 million (2017: Rs. 1,990
million).

along with other companies in the Sindh High Court (SHC). The High Court of Sindh through an interim order
passed on May 31, 2011 ordered that for every consignment cleared after December 28, 2006, 50% of the value of
infrastructure cess should be paid in cash and a bank guarantee for the remaining amount should be submitted
until the final order is passed. The management is confident for a favorable outcome however, as a matter of
prudence, the Company has paid Rs. 79.96 million (50%) of the value of infrastructure cess in cash and recorded
liability for the remaining amount which is supported by a bank guarantee. 

During the previous year,the Supreme Court of Pakistan has passed an order dated November 10, 2016 that the
Workers’ Welfare Fund (WWF) is a fee, not a tax. Hence, the amendments made through Finance Act, 2006 and
2008 have been declared invalid in the said order. Therefore, the management believe that in the light of the
aforementioned judgment, all cases pertaining to WWF, pending for adjudication would be decided in the favour of
the company and therefore management has reversed expense recognised in prior periods. The current year
liability represents the provision against Workers welfare fund as per The Sindh Workers Welfare Fund Act, 2014.
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24. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

24.1 Contingencies

 2018 2017
Note24.2 Commitments

(i) Civil works 27,001,630 2,405,047
(ii) Letters of credit

- stores and spares 4,479,143 3,366,884
- raw materials 47,706,048 215,284,865
- machinery 3,517,120 -

(iii)  Bank guarantees issued on behalf of the Company 24.2.1 106,299,008 93,299,008

(iv) Bills discounted
- local 25,026,800 34,111,904
- export 461,937,458 391,259,344

(v) Outstanding sales contract 499,194,562 207,696,738

24.2.1

 2018 2017
Note

25. SALES - NET

Export

-Yarn 2,633,395,391 3,081,643,073
-Yarn (indirect export) 1,386,701,241 128,085,087

4,020,096,632 3,209,728,160
Local 

-Yarn 1,726,712,482 1,999,851,730
-Raw material 126,694,331 -
-Waste 84,995,172 74,681,368

1,938,401,985 2,074,533,098
5,958,498,617 5,284,261,258

Less:
Sales tax - (3,576)

5,958,498,617 5,284,257,682

26. COST OF GOODS SOLD

Cost of goods manufactured 26.1 5,122,439,125 4,923,417,349
Finished goods (including waste stock)
  Opening stock 176,102,191 144,637,234
  Closing stock 9 (137,476,983) (176,102,191)

38,625,208 (31,464,957)
Purchase of yarn - 376,306
Cost of manufactured goods sold 5,161,064,333 4,892,328,698
Cost of raw material sold 124,252,031 -

5,285,316,364 4,892,328,698

This includes bank guarantee related to Sindh Development and Maintenance of Infrastructure Cess amounting to
Rs. 92 million (2017: Rs.75.5 million).

……….Rupees……….

There is no contingent liability against the Company as at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017.

……….Rupees……….
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26.1 Cost of goods manufactured

Raw material 26.1.1 4,115,407,114 3,913,701,877
Packing material 70,303,253 71,286,095
Stores and spares 70,958,362 83,059,735
Power and fuel 389,939,095 376,651,086
Salaries, wages and benefits 26.1.2 315,650,357 309,468,448
Depreciation 5.2 137,568,846 136,109,837
Insurance 7,374,938 9,358,885
Amortization 6 9,613 -
Repairs and maintenance 2,905,324 7,232,982
Other overheads 17,691,542 18,892,038

5,127,808,444 4,925,760,983
Work-in-process
   Opening stock 32,073,431 29,729,797
   Closing stock 9 (37,442,750) (32,073,431)

(5,369,319) (2,343,634)

5,122,439,125 4,923,417,349

 2018 2017
Note

26.1.1 Raw material consumed

Opening stock 1,167,741,831 556,362,095
Purchases - net 3,883,822,520 4,525,081,613

5,051,564,351 5,081,443,708
Closing stock 9 (936,157,237) (1,167,741,831)

4,115,407,114 3,913,701,877

26.1.2

 2018 2017
Note

27. DISTRIBUTION COST

Brokerage and commission 27,772,745 33,611,352
Export expenses 32,848,702 42,484,065
Local freight and handling 6,330,799 5,722,262
Sea freight 17,790,749 14,843,591
Staff salaries and benefits 27.1 3,887,068 6,555,734
Bank charges 47,663 95,298
Local selling expenses 684,240 1,712,580
Others 20,235 6,550

89,382,201 105,031,432

27.1

Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 24.59 million (2017: Rs. 24.43 million) in respect of staff retirement
benefits.

……….Rupees……….

Staff salaries and benefits include  Rs. 0.25 million (2017 : Rs. 0.55 million) in respect of  staff retirement benefits.

……….Rupees……….
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 2018 2017
Note

28. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Staff salaries and benefits 28.1 62,051,620 57,794,703
Directors' remuneration 6,625,000 6,064,355
Depreciation 5.2 6,247,174 7,154,455
Legal and professional 2,477,223 2,037,272
Rent, rates and taxes 4,090,200 2,974,351
Fees and subscription 4,726,195 3,107,350
Utilities 1,928,775 2,077,941
Traveling and conveyance 617,381 713,396
Provision for doubtful debts 10.5 - 509,434
Vehicles running 3,356,185 2,842,812
Printing and stationery 707,466 1,133,295
Postage and telephone 2,099,374 2,701,336
Amortization 6 219,397 1,351,456
Auditors' remuneration 28.4 969,600 1,415,600
Donation 28.2 & 28.3 1,200,000 1,361,120
Repairs and maintenance 1,227,777 735,825
Insurance 690,812 824,728
Other 610,827 514,024

99,845,006 95,313,453

28.1

28.2

28.3 None of the directors or their spouse had any interest in the donee's fund.

 2018 2017
Note

28.4 Auditors' remuneration

Annual audit fee 650,000 650,000
Fee for review of :
- Condensed interim financial information 75,000 75,000
- Statement of compliance with Code of Corporate Governance 25,000 25,000

Certifications and other services 219,600 665,600

969,600 1,415,600

29. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workers' profit participation fund 15,987,518 3,323,853
Workers' welfare fund 6,079,638 -
Exchange loss - net - 3,199,359

22,067,156 6,523,212

Donation charged in these financial statements is paid to Bait Ul Sukoon Cancer Hospital Rs. 1.2 million (2017: 
Rs. 1.2 million).

……….Rupees……….

……….Rupees……….

Staff salaries and benefits include  Rs. 6 million (2017 : Rs. 2.5 million) in respect of the staff retirement benefits. 
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30. FINANCE COST

Interest / mark-up on:
long-term finances 49,300,162 62,695,789
short-term borrowings 161,224,776 103,029,544
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 155,515 -

Letters of credit discounting charges 11,075,376 8,068,753
Bank charges and guarantee commission 6,219,351 2,679,398

227,975,180 176,473,484

31. OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Profit on term deposits receipts 1,245,496 1,471,875
Profit on savings accounts 255,850 304,072

1,501,346 1,775,947
Income from non-financial assets
License income 2,365,100 4,247,100
Rent income 600,000 600,000
Insurance claim 81,601 -
Rebate on export sales 51,988,061 47,820,415
Income on sale of store items - 122,350
Workers' welfare fund provision reversed 21.4 - 31,388,491
Exchange gain - net 7,389,982 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 71,274 977,997

62,496,018 85,156,353

63,997,364 86,932,300

Note

32. TAXATION

Current  
-  for the year 62,815,325 52,542,899
-  for prior year 654,732 6,303,077

Deferred 32.2 - -

63,470,057 58,845,976

32.1

32.2 The Company, being prudent, has recognized deferred tax only to the extent of taxable temporary differences.

32.3 According to the management, the tax provision made in the financial statements is sufficient. 

32.4

 2018 2017
……….Rupees……….

The numerical reconciliation between the tax expense and accounting profit has not been presented for the current
and comparative year in these financial statements as the total income of the Company for the current and
comparative years attracted minimum tax under Section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and its export sales
fall under final tax regime.

The Company computes tax based on the generally accepted interpretations of the tax laws to ensure that the 
sufficient provision for the purpose of taxation is available which can be analysed as follows:
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Provision forYear
taxation

Tax
assessed Excess / (short)

2017     52,542,899           52,489,845                  53,054 
2016     40,727,049           38,871,045             1,856,004 
2015     40,039,612             3,728,371           36,311,241 

33. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company which is as follows :

 2018 2017

Profit for the year 234,440,017 36,673,727

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 3,342,570 3,342,570

Earnings per share 70.14 10.97

 2018 2017
Note

34. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 15 9,716,040 17,411,562
Short-term running finances 23 (1,342,198,856) (1,270,268,550)

(1,332,482,816) (1,252,856,988)

35. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES

Remuneration 6,300,000 42,150,112 5,959,355 38,936,709
Bonus / Ex-gratia 510,000 3,057,037 - -
Retirement benefits 600,000 2,840,850 510,000 2,994,000
Leave encashment - 946,950 - 998,000
Medical - 309,340 - 176,507

7,410,000 49,304,289 6,469,355 43,105,216
No. of person(s) 1 12 1 11

35.1 The Chief Executive and certain executives are also entitled for use of Company maintained cars.
35.2

 2018 2017
36. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Number of spindles installed 36,708 36,708
Number of spindles worked 36,708 36,708
Number of shifts per day 3 3
Installed capacity after conversion into 20/s count-kgs 12,806,181 12,806,181
Actual production of yarn after conversion into 20/s count-kgs 11,988,203 12,239,478

37. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Average number of employees during the year 1,239 1,223
Number of employees as at June 30 1,218 1,195

..……….….…………... Rupees…..…………………………..

An amount of Rs. 0.24 million (2017: Rs 0.12 million) has been charged in these financial statements in respect of fee
paid to Directors for attending Board meetings.

……….Rupees……….

The aggregate amount charged in these financial statements in respect of remuneration and benefits to the Chief Executive and
Executives are as follows:

2018 2017
Chief 

Executive
Executives Chief Executive Executives
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38. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

38.1 Name and nature of relationship
Associated Companies due to common directorship & common management

- Island Textile Mills Limited
- Tata Textile Mills Limited
- Tata Energy Limited
- Tata Best Foods Limited
Associated Companies due to shareholding in the company
- Island Textile Mills Limited (note 16)

 2018 2017
Relationship with the Company Nature of transactions

Associated undertakings Purchase of power 383,101,706 367,363,701
Sale of goods 126,694,331 -
Purchase of goods 20,000,000 510,805
Share of expenses paid 2,404,784 6,746,120
Share of expenses received 4,379,309 3,893,886
Purchase of machinery - 60,000
License income 2,365,100 4,247,100
Rent income 600,000 600,000
Sale of stores items 405,000 -

 Directors Rent expense 4,090,200 3,573,660

The related parties comprise associated undertakings, directors, key management personnel and their relatives. The Company
in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Detail of related parties (with whom the
Company has transacted) along with relationship and transactions with them, other than those which have been disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

……….Rupees……….

 2018 2017

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

39.1 Financial instrument by category

Financial assets as per balance sheet
Loans and receivables at amortized cost

- Long-term deposits 1,229,384 1,179,384
- Trade debts 604,134,267 418,035,959
- Loans to employees 5,011,336 7,324,167
- Trade deposits 21,825 21,825
- Other receivables 73,326,030 49,417,447
- Cash and bank balances 9,009,492 16,979,223

692,732,334 492,958,005
Held to maturity

- Other financial assets 24,740,448 24,740,448
Available for sale

- Long-term investment 699,470 653,753

718,172,252 518,352,206

Financial liabilities as per balance sheet
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

- Long-term finance 587,502,436 796,159,895
- Trade and other payables 111,052,940 206,615,046
- Unclaimed dividend 1,120,901 1,123,604
- Interest / mark up accrued on borrowings 59,857,085 43,207,289
- Short-term borrowings 1,951,037,712 2,184,746,433

2,710,571,074 3,231,852,267

………. Rupees ……….
Note
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39.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

39.2.1 Financial risk factors

Introduction and overview
The Company has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:

- market risk
- credit risk
- liquidity risk

Financial risk factors and risk management framework

This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, Company's objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing these risks.

The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on having cost effective funding as well as
management of financial risk to minimize earnings volatility and provide maximum return to shareholders. 

The Company's objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of shareholders' value. Risk is inherent
in Company's activities but it is managed through monitoring and controlling activities which are based on
internal controls set on different activities of the Company by the Board of Directors. These controls reflect the
business strategy and market environment of the Company as well as the level of the risk that the Company is
willing to accept.

39.2.2 Market risk

(a) Currency risk

At June 30, 2018, if the Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar with all other
variables held constant, profit for the year would have been higher / lower by Rs. 32.30 million (2017: Rs.
35.938 million), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains / losses on translation of foreign currency trade
debts, US Dollar bank balance and US Dollar denominated borrowings and payables.

The Board along with the Company’s finance and treasury department oversees the management of the financial
risks reflecting changes in the market conditions and also the Company's risk taking activities providing
assurance that these activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that the financial risk
are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company policies and risk appetite.

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates, foreign exchange rates or the equity prices due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the
instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in
the market. 
Under market risk the Company is exposed to currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk (equity price
risk).

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company exports yarn to foreign customers which exposes it to
currency risk. As at June 30, 2018, financial assets includes trade debts and bank accounts in foreign
currency amounting to Rs. 313.90 million (2017: Rs. 188.10 million) equivalent to US$ 2.59 million (2017:
US$ 1.79 million) and financial liabilities include foreign bills payable, foreign commission payable and
finance against import and export amounting to Rs. 8.41 million (2017: Rs. 171.27 million) equivalent to US$
0.07 million (2017: US$ 1.63 million). The average rate applied during the year is Rs.109.9 / US $ (2017: Rs.
104.8 /US $) and the spot rate as at June 30, 2018 was Rs.121.4 / US$ (2017: Rs. 105 /US$).
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

Fixed rate instruments

(c)  Equity price risk

39.2.3 Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

If interest rates had been 100 basis points lower / higher and all other variables were held constant, the
Company’s proft for the year ended June 30, 2018 would increase / decrease by Rs. 21.07 million (2017: Rs.
16.69 million). This is mainly attributable to the Company’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate
borrowings.

The Company has invested an amount of Rs 24.74 million (2017: Rs 24.74 million) at interest rate of 5.25%
to 5.75% per annum (2017: 4.05% to 5.50% per annum) in Term Deposits Receipts (TDRs).

As at reporting date the Company is not materially exposed to equity securities price risk as it only has an
investment amounting to  Rs. 0.70 million (2017: Rs. 0.65 million ) in the shares of Samba Bank Limited.

If equity price would have been 10% higher / lower with all others variables held constant, other
comprehensive income for the year of the Company would have been higher / lower by Rs. 0.070 million
(2017: Rs. 0.065 million)

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
other party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Financial assets
which are subject to credit risk amounted to Rs. 323 million (2017: Rs. 359.38 million).

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or
factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

(b) Interest rate risk

Carrying amount
 2018 2017

Variable rate instruments
Financial assets
 -  savings accounts with banks             846,068             900,206 

Less: financial liabilities 
- long-term finances       587,502,436       796,159,895 
- short-term borrowings    1,951,037,712    2,184,746,433 

  (2,538,540,148) (2,980,906,328)

Net financial liabilities at variable interest rates   (2,537,694,080)   (2,980,006,122)

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from savings accounts with banks, other financial assets (TDRs),
long term finances and short term borrowings amounting to Rs. 2.51 billion (financial liabilities on a net
basis) (2017: Rs. 2.98 billion). These are benchmarked to variable rates which exposes the Company to
cash flow interest rate risk only.

………. Rupees ……….
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Short-term Long-term

A1+ AAA

A1+ AA+

A1+ AA+

A+ A1

AA- A-1

AAA A-1+

AA+ A1+

A1+ AA-

AAA A1+

AA+ A-1+

AAA A-1+

AA- A1+

AA A1+

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily balances with banks, trade debts
and loans) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other
financial instruments. The credit risk on liquid funds (cash and bank balances) is limited because the counter
parties are banks with a reasonably high credit rating. The names and credit rating of major banks where the
Company maintains its bank balances are as follows:

Name of Bank
Credit Rating

Allied Bank Limited

Askari Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

Dubai Islamic Bank

Habib Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

JS Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

Meezan Bank Limited

National Bank of Pakistan

Soneri Bank Limited

The Bank of Punjab

Credit risk related to receivables

Credit risk related to other assets 

39.2.4 Liquidity risk

Credit risk from other assets primarily relates to Company's investment in term deposits issued by a bank (note
14). The risk is managed through ensuring that such investments are made in instruments issued by reputed
banks with good credit ratings. The credit rating of the investee banks is A1+ and AA- for short term and long
term respectively.

The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient
collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company’s
exposure is continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst
approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by
the management annually.

Trade debts consist of a large number of customers, spread across geographical areas. Ongoing credit
evaluation is performed on the financial condition of customers, where appropriate. The Company does not have
any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. At June 30, 2018, the Company had approximately 5 (2017: 8) major customers that owed more
than Rs. 10 million each and accounted for approximately 91.26% (2017: 83.52%) of local trade debts.

Liquidity risk reflects the Company’s inability in raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely
monitors the Company’s liquidity and cash flow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity
ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of the overall funding mix and avoidance of undue
reliance on large individual customer.



Annual Report 2018

68 SALFI TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

39.2.5 Operational risks

- requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities;
- requirements for reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;
- compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;
- documentation of controls and procedures;
- requirements for periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and 
  procedures to address the risks identified;
- ethical and business standards;
- risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective;and
- operational and qualitative track record of the plant and equipment supplier and related service providers.

The Company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage
to its reputation while achieving its business objective and generating returns for investors.

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the
processes, technology and infrastructure supporting the Company's activities, either internally within the
Company or externally at the Company's service providers, and from external factors other than credit, market
and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted
standards of operational behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the Company's activities.

Primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over operational risk rests with the
management of the Company. This responsibility encompasses the controls in the following areas:

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
short term borrowings. 86% of the Company’s debt will mature in less than one year at June 30, 2018 (2017:
80%) based on the carrying value of borrowings reflected in the financial statements.

Liquidity and interest risk table

Interest rate Less than 1 
month 1 - 3 months  3 months - 1 

year 1 - 5 years More than 5 
years Total

2018
Long-term finance 7.04%-13% 17,370,164 93,753,335 130,245,083 346,133,854 - 587,502,436
Trade and other payables - 2,008,047 18,882,255 231,194,249 - 252,084,551

- 29,099,415 21,803,573 8,954,097 - - 59,857,085

Short-term borrowings
Three months 
KIBOR plus 

0.3% to 1.5%

296,072,360 140,397,758 1,514,567,594 - - 1,951,037,712

344,549,986 274,836,921 1,884,961,023 346,133,854 - 2,850,481,784

Interest rate Less than 1 
month 1 - 3 months  3 months - 1 

year 1 - 5 years More than 5 
years Total

2017
Long-term finance 7.04%-13% 17,364,398 83,741,306 107,551,755 557,502,436 30,000,000 796,159,895
Trade and other payables - 26,569,540 162,370,710 87,190,917 - 276,131,167
Interest / mark-up 
accrued on loans - 25,728,215 15,552,980 1,926,095 - - 43,207,290

Short-term borrowings
Three months 
KIBOR plus 
0.3% to 1%

770,268,550 1,414,477,883 - - - 2,184,746,433

839,930,703 1,676,142,879 196,668,767 557,502,436 30,000,000 3,300,244,785

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Company can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

…………………………….….…………... Rupees …..………………………………………………

…………………………….….…………... Rupees …..………………………………………………

Interest / mark-up 
accrued on 
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40. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(a)

(b) Fair value estimation

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

-

-

40.1

         Level 1          Level 2                 Level 3 Total

- 1,340,000,000 - 1,340,000,000
- 766,817,949 - 766,817,949
- 2,000,921,090 - 2,000,921,090

- 4,107,739,039 - 4,107,739,039

         Level 1         Level 2                 Level 3 Total

- 696,000,000 - 696,000,000
- 661,215,871 - 661,215,871
- 1,929,066,272 - 1,929,066,272
- 3,286,282,143 - 3,286,282,143

There were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy during the year.

----------------------- Rupees-----------------------

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate
their fair values as the items are short term in nature.

The Company discloses the financial instruments reflected in the balance sheet at fair value in accordance
with the following fair value hierarchy:

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

As at year end, long term investment comprising listed shares of Samba Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 0.699
million (2017: Rs. 0.653 million) are classified as level 1. Other than that, there are no such financial assets or
liabilities which can be classified under the above levels. There have been no transfers between levels.

The Company's leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land and plant and machinery are stated at revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The fair value measurements of the Company's freehold land, buildings
on leasehold land and plant and machinery carried out as at June 30, 2018 were performed by Messers Iqbal
A.Nanjee & Company (Private) Limited (valuer), an independent valuer not related to the Company. The valuer is
listed on panel of Pakistan Banks Association and they have appropriate qualification and experience in the fair
value measurement of properties, plant and machinery.

Details of Company's leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land and plant and machinery and information about
the fair value hierarchy as at end of 30 June 2018 are as follows:

June 30, 2018

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

Buildings on leasehold 
Plant and machinery

Buildings on leasehold 
Plant and machinery

June 30, 2017

------------------------- Rupees--------------------
Leasehold land

Leasehold land
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41. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

 2018 2017

Total debts    2,538,540,148    2,980,906,328 
Less: cash and bank balances         (9,716,040)       (17,411,562)
Net debt    2,528,824,108    2,963,494,766 
Total equity    3,259,670,311    2,184,663,022 
Adjusted capital    5,788,494,419    5,148,157,788 

Gearing ratio                  0.44                  0.58 

42. OPERATING SEGMENTS

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

43. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

44. RECLASSIFICATION

45. GENERAL

The objectives of the Company when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that
it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for stakeholders, and to maintain a strong capital base to
support the sustained development of its business. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light
of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to the shareholders or issue new shares. The Company's overall strategy remains unchanged from
previous year.

These financial statements have been approved by the board of directors of the Company and authorized for issue on
September 24, 2018. 

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee.

……….Rupees……….

Chief Executive considers the business as a single operating segment as the Company's assets allocation decisions
are based on a single, integrated business strategy, and the Company's performance is evaluated on an overall basis.

The information with respect to operating segment is stated below: 

64.47 (2017: 60.74) percent sales of the Company relate to export customers. 

All non-current assets of the Company as at year end are allocated within Pakistan. 

There are no customers whom sales made during the year exceeded 10 percent of total sales for the current
 and previous year. 

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified to reflect more appropriate presentation of events and
transactions for the purpose of comparison.

The gearing ratio at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017 were as follows:

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
ANWAR AHMED TATA
CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR

HASEEB HAFEEZUDDEEN
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

ADEEL SHAHID TATA 

45.1. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Board of Directors at their meeting held on September 24, 2018 have proposed a dividend of Rs. 2 per share 
(2017: nil) for the year ended June 30, 2018, amounting to Rs. 6.685 millon (2017: nil), subject to the approval of 
members at the annual general meeting to be held on October 22, 2018.
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2.2891.493

837

Nil

Nil

2

6.685
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2018
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